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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – MAY 22, 2008

(Time Noted – 7:01 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will then consider the applications in the order heard. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; however, the Board has up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask that when anyone is speaking please use the microphones and also if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off so that we will not be interrupted. And I'd also like to mention that the Members of the Board do make site visits.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

MICHAEL MAHER - ARRIVED AT 7:30 PM

ALSO PRESENT: 
BETTY GENNARELLI

GERALD CANFIELD 

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 


THOMAS & TAMMI PALMER

19 BELLEVUE ROAD, NBGH







(99-3-1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an above ground pool in a front yard. (Has two front yards Bellevue and Boulder Roads)

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Thomas & Tammi Palmer.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on May 13th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on May 14th. The applicant sent out twenty-five registered letters, twenty-four were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Ms. Palmer: Tammi Palmer.

Mr. Palmer: I'm Thomas Palmer.

Ms. Palmer: Our application is for an above ground pool to be put in to what we consider to be our rear yard which you consider to be the front yard. Our request is due to a hardship based on the zoning you consider us to only have front yards and we're requesting that the pool be put in our backyard, what we would consider to be our backyard.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Palmer: Also we don't see how it would interfere anybody because it doesn't block anybody's view as far as traffic wise, if anything the house blocks somebody's view. So it doesn't interfere with people driving by, because that what I was told that one of the concerns with about a front yard is that it would interfere with the line of site when people are driving. And my house interferes with the line of site, I mean, the pool is going behind the house so it wouldn't cause any inconvenience to anybody whatsoever.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. As I mentioned we have made site visits and you're in one of those situations where you have two front yards.

Ms. Palmer: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? Are there any other questions or comments from the public? If so, please state your name and address. Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Michael Maher: Not Present

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:54 PM)

THOMAS & TAMMI PALMER

19 BELLEVUE ROAD, NBGH







(99-3-1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an above ground pool in a front yard. (Has two front yards Bellevue and Boulder Roads)

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the application of Thomas & Tammi Palmer, 19 Bellevue Road, seeking an area variance to build an above ground pool in a front yard. This property has two front yards. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Eaton: Typical problem that people run into with two front yards and I don't see a problem with it. 

Mr. McKelvey: No, where he is putting the pool I don't see any problem. 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes





 Michael Maher: Not present for presentation.

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is approved.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:55 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:05 PM) 


PHILIP E. & ELAINE J. SEGALI

275 ROUTE 17K, NBGH







(90-1-2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation of the decision and resolution dated January 18, 1985 for a use variance to permit the construction of a model home/office in an R-3 District. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Philip E. and Elaine J. Segali.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on May 13th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on May 14th. The applicant sent out eighteen registered letters, seventeen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: You may begin.

Ms. Gennarelli: We have two microphones. Can you use the microphone please? It comes off the stand.

Mr. Coppola: Thank you, I always forget.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Coppola: Good evening everyone, my name is AJ Coppola, I'm of the architectural firm Coppola Associates. With me tonight as part of this application is John Steinberg of Schoonmaker Homes and Phil Segali who is the present owner of the property we're speaking about tonight. Mr. Segali purchased this building from Schoonmaker Homes for use as a professional office. So basically what we're here for tonight is basically an interpretation. We are not here for a use variance. We understand that the threshold for a use variance is typically fairly high but what we're basically here to ask the Board is an interpretation of the existing use of the structure, which basically is classified as a model home/office. We believe it's a professional office. That's the decision we would like. This original building which you can see very nicely from the aerial photo here was first in front of the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board in January 1985 where it was granted a variance and that variance Resolution is in your exhibits. It's Exhibit #4 and I believe it states in there that that variance was granted for a model home/administrative office. So, basically there is a portion of the building that resembles a house and the upstairs of that, I think, is the classified as the model home and then the lower portion of that part of the structure is offices as well as the addition on the westerly side is all offices. So that variance was granted in January of 1985. A Building Permit was issued in July of 1985 for a model home for office space so it's slightly different terms but basically the same (inaudible). So construction began in July of 1985. By May 21, 1987 a Certificate of Occupancy was issued for a single-family dwelling and that's Exhibit #7 so this construction was basically started simultaneously not in the same time but basically the model home portion was started first and just was started, kind of just slightly beyond that. So, in May 1987 there was a C.O. issued for the single-family dwelling. Later on that year, September 10, 1987 there's a second C.O. issued for the existing office building. That is Exhibit #2 you have so that is this portion of the building itself. Basically then later that year in December of 1987 Schoonmaker Homes wrote the Building Department a letter asking for a change in the Certificate of Occupancy that was dated May 21st. Basically asking it to change from a single-family dwelling which is when the first C.O. was issued to reflect the fact that its not a single-family dwelling, it’s a model home/office so that's Exhibit #7. So you'll see that the Building Department didn't re-date the C.O. but they issued another C.O. with different classification and that was done in response to the letter from Schoonmaker Homes in December of 1987. So, I mean the point of that is that to me is that this was never intended in 1987 to be used as a house. It was never intended to be used as a single-family dwelling. It wasn't even constructed that way. If it was constructed that way I think the Building Code at the time would have required a fire separation between the office portion of the lower level and the single-family dwelling on the upper level. So even at that time that Certificate of Occupancy was model home/office. So basically that's kind of the history in a nutshell. A couple of other important things that we wanted to make the Board aware of is that the tax assessor which we've also given you a copy of in the application that is always been classified as an office since 1987 and they pay taxes that way and I think at this point I am going to turn it over to Mr. Steinberg. He has some information to give the Board regarding a petition he's gone around to his neighbors and they've signed that and I'd like him to present that and John is also going to talk about the surrounding area and also Mr. Segali is here if you have any questions about how this business is going to be used by him, he is going to be the occupant there and the owner.  

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Steinberg: Good evening everybody. I'm going to just take aside…to thank you people for doing what you do because I've…over the years I've gone before a number of Planning Boards and ZBAs and I know that none of you get rich doing this. So I do appreciate and I have said this to other Planning Boards and ZBAs I do appreciate the time you spend because you don't get a lot of money for it. Thank you very much. Now aside from that, the question of the business use of this building is really a little complicated because a business building that has a demonstration and model area in it and it’s a nuance but to me as a builder that owned and operated a building business in this building I needed a demonstration area. So when we originally came before the ZBA we weren't concerned with having a business use. We were concerned with the permission to have a demonstration area in a business building and so that's why we had all the emphasis on a model home. Thirty years later it’s a slightly different situation because we now have a model area that really isn't appropriate for homes being built in this area and I'm old enough that I want to retire and sold the building and the purchaser wants to put office space in the model area and I don't see that as a use change because from my standpoint that model area was always a business use. I needed it for my business. I needed it to have to show people color selections, floor plans, things like roofing selections, cabinets, siding, shutters, windows, door trim, door casings, carpet colors, carpet styles and a whole bunch of things. So it was a normal thing in my business to have that area there. Not normal where we're going. So I've gone around to my neighbors with a petition and I present it here. The petition is pretty straight forward it just says the application is from…that they've recently had a Notice of Hearing…the application is from Phil and Elaine Segali and is about a variance issue January 18,1985. We support the concept of changing the model home floor of the building to offices is not a use change but only a change in nomenclature. The building has always been used for business and was never a residence and was never occupied as a home. 

(Mr. Steinberg approached)

Mr. McKelvey: How many neighbors did you go to?

Mr. Steinberg: There were seventeen names. I was able to contact about fifteen. Ten signed. I didn't sign myself because (inaudible). There are ten signatures there. The ones that…nobody said that they were against, there were two or three that said they just didn't want to sign but they were not against the proposition and the rest I could not reach. You know, they just…I could never find them. So…

Ms. Eaton: Are these people just on Arbor Drive?

Mr. Steinberg: Yes, many on Arbor Drive. I have _ Arbor Drive, _ Arbor Drive, no, that's _…on Arbor Drive I have _ Arbor Drive, _ Arbor Drive, _ Arbor Drive, _ Arbor Drive, _ Arbor Drive and that's it. Everyone immediately adjacent to this property on Arbor Drive signed the petition. The ones that were further away they would have signed except I couldn't reach them…well I don't know that but they didn't sign because I couldn't reach them.

Mr. McKelvey: I only question because there's a couple of hundred houses in there.

Mr. Steinberg: Sure.

Mr. McKelvey: And I'm one of them.

Mr. Steinberg: O.K. Good. You weren't on the list I guess.

Mr. McKelvey: No, I live on ____________.

Mr. Steinberg: O.K. 

Mr. McKelvey: But the way the business has been run you know there's not really too much traffic in and out of there.

Mr. Steinberg: That's correct.

Mr. McKelvey: I don't know what you're going to put in there now, what they're going to put in there now though. 

Mr. Steinberg: Well Mr. Segali will address that but I'm going to preempt him a little bit by saying he doesn't plan on changing the parking, so…

Ms. Drake: When was that petition done? That says 1985 when back when the original…so that's not the people that are there now?

Mr. Coppola: No it was just done last month…(to Mr. Steinberg) you're petition…

Mr. Steinberg: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: 1985 refers to when the variance was granted.

Mr. Steinberg: I did the petition once the Hearing Notice went out.

Ms. Drake: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Steinberg: And the other thing I just wanted to mention was…I wanted to just also explain why I am here. Since the building has been sold what am I doing here? The reason I'm here is that I have a financial interest in the building still the purchase money mortgage. I have a contractual obligation to try and help Mr. Segali get this favorable interpretation. The only other thing I wanted to say was it's so obvious today but when we were before the ZBA in 1985 we knew that we were going to have extra space in this building but it doesn't show in any of the documentation but in thinking about it and it occurred to me that there's one way I could sort of demonstrate that. And if you look at this building here and you read the original variance decision they granted us two signs and if you're only going to have one business there you don't need two signs. That's the only way I can demonstrate anything that seems to show that this was intended to be more than just a one business building. Thank you very much.

Ms. Eaton: Do you have a full basement under that building?

Mr. Coppola: It's a split-level house so you are entering at the middle and there's a level below and a level above.

Ms. Eaton: So like a crawl space?

Mr. Coppola: No.

Mr. Steinberg: No. 

Ms. Eaton: It's on a slab?

Mr. Coppola: The lower space is on a slab.

Mr. Steinberg: But they're both out of the ground enough so that there is no fuel at the base of it. It's like a typical raised ranch or a bi-level. 

Mr. Coppola: And maybe Phil if you want to speak to the question about the (inaudible)

Mr. Steinberg: And as well…as well as a nuance its important to us because there's a lot of dollars involved if this becomes a use variance discussion, so...

Chairperson Cardone: We have a question about the use of the building in the future.

Mr. Segali: Yes, let me give you a little explanation. My brother and I are partners in a business that sells pre-cast concrete products to highway contractors. We've had our office in the City of Newburgh on Broadway for the last twenty-six years. We're on the third floor of an old walk-up apartment building. We're little to no walk-in traffic whatsoever in our building. We cover territories in New Jersey, New York City, Rockland, Dutchess, Orange, Putnam Counties and we do all of our transactions over the phone. When we have to visit a client we hop in a car and we drive to the client's office. We're hoping to move out to this new building, occupying about 50% of the building. We intend to use it exclusively as a sales office, which is exactly what Mr. Steinberg has done for the past twenty years. The only difference in my opinion is that Mr. Steinberg because of his business has had to allocate a portion of his office to show what he sells. My business doesn't have to do that and I believe you've called that portion that he uses to show his product his model home portion of his office. 

Mr. McKelvey: That was the question that I was going to ask you. Are you going to have products out there?

Mr. Segali: No, no, no, no…we represent companies one is north of Albany. We represent A & R Concrete Products in New Windsor. We represent Nina Foundry out in Wisconsin. We are a manufacturer's representative and we don't manufacture anything and we don't yard anything and we don't broker anything and a...     

Chairperson Cardone: What do you anticipate the other 50% would be used for?

Mr. Segali: Well we are going to rent out to office, hopefully professional office, you know, low volume in and out. We want to keep it quiet like we've had it for the last twenty-six years. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: If I may? What methodology would you use to enforce and insure a low traffic factor? I know you're the landlord and the owner.

Mr. Segali: I would select. I am going to be there. That is going to be my home for hopefully the next ten, fifteen, twenty years. I am going to select people that I know that have low volume. It has to be a requirement.

Mr. Coppola: Let me just say that this parking is conforming. It's one space per three hundred square feet. That's what…well I'm sorry it was conforming by those standards. There's eighteen spaces and if it was…I calculated it as one space three hundred square feet so there's eighteen spaces for 5500 sq. ft.?

Mr. Steinberg: Actually the net building area is about 3500 sq. ft. if you take the outside walls (inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Could you hand him over the microphone? This is being recorded John.

Mr. Segali: Sure.

Mr. Steinberg: I'm sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: That mic doesn't sound like it's on.

Ms. Gennarelli: Is there a green light on?

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Mr. Steinberg: The building area, the gross area is about 5300 but when you take out the walls and the stairway it's more like 3500 and you'd be then at the current standard of only about 17 or 18 spaces. I think we are conforming by today's standards. 

Ms. Eaton: How many spaces will your business require?

Mr. Segali: Approximately six. 

Ms. Eaton: So you will have employees other than you and your brother?

Mr. Segali: Yes we have staff.

Mr. Donovan: How many employees?

Mr. Segali: We have a total of six.

Mr. Donovan: Including you and…?

Mr. Segali: Including my brother and myself and we're there but we are on the road a lot because that's how we make our living.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? 

Mr. Donovan: If I could just ask Mr. Steinberg? When you operated it how many employees did you have?

Mr. Steinberg: It was, I think the most I had in the total employ of the company was thirty-five.

Mr. Donovan: No I mean really in that space.

Mr. Steinberg: But they were not all situated there. I think the most I ever had there was twelve, maybe fifteen.

Mr. McKelvey: There never seemed to be a problem with parking.

Mr. Steinberg: That's correct even, like Phil, even though my employees might have been out of there we had an office staff that was there steady. But people that are building houses are out building the houses so the job managers, the truck drivers, the service people were not staying in the office a lot. They were out doing their jobs, hopefully.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

Mr. Hughes: Grace?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: If I may?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Yes, sir.

Mr. Hughes: Say this is approved and Mr. Segali chooses to sell, where does that leave him in the big picture of this thing?

Mr. Donovan: Well, the issue before the Board we've been asked to render an interpretation. The use variance imposed a condition that any change to such use shall be subject to the further review and approval of this Board. So I think if the Board was going to say that there's been no change in the use then I think every time there's been and I…it's difficult obviously for the Building Department to enforce this but every time that there is a sale or something that's different because you basically have something that's being described in any event which is similar to the sales office for the model home you being a manufacturer's rep for a product and office. So I think that the Board in the first instance would have to say make the interpretation if it's a favorable interpretation they are in the same boat they are in now.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for clarifying that. You understand?

Mr. Segali: I'm not sure of the subtleties.

Mr. Hughes: I know you're going to live to be one hundred and retire at ninety-five but at some point maybe you'll sell the building.

Mr. Segali: I am sure I will at some point.

Mr. Hughes: I wanted you to know that if you do and another person comes along and wants to make a residence out of it or something different then its got to go through the Board.

Mr. Segali: Oh, of course, if there is change in use that's what the stipulation was in the original variance. I think what we're trying to say is this is not a change in use. It's a sales office; it was a sales office I'm continuing as a sales office. 

Mr. Hughes: Are you going to take these bedrooms and make them into one big office or individual offices?

Mr. Segali: There's only…there's no bedrooms, there's rooms that don't have office furniture in them. You have to see it to understand.

Mr. Hughes: I didn't go inside. 

Mr. Steinberg: In the demonstration area there would have been three-bedrooms and there's still three-bedrooms they make good offices.  

Mr. Segali: Yes, they are just rooms.

Mr. Donovan: But the point being if you turned it into some sort of personal service establishment, you decide you are going to have a beauty salon there, that would not be consistent.

Mr. Segali: That would be a change of use.

Mr. Donovan: Yes. Correct.

Mr. Segali: Understood. I would assume if I rented it as an office it would not be a change of use, that's…

Mr. Donovan: Well that's ultimately what this Board will decide.

Mr. Segali: Right, that's the question. Yes. I want to add one more thing. The portion of the building that is off to the west as AJ has described, is metered for I think it has six electrical meters for that one building which to me meant at the time that at the time it was intended to be rented out as space. There's six meters, electric meters for the one building on the side so I just figured I mention that. 

Mr. McKelvey: Is the entrance to that building only off of Arbor Drive?

Mr. Steinberg: Yes. (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me? I'm sorry. Could you just hand him over that mic? Thanks, Jerry.

Mr. Steinberg: The entrance is off Arbor Drive and it shows on the survey and that's the only entrance. 

Chairperson Cardone: I'd like to read the Orange County Department of Planning report. 

In this case, the proposed action to use the existing structure formerly a model home and sales office as an office will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it cause any inter-municipal concerns.

And their recommendation is: Local Determination. Do we have any other questions or comments? Mr. Canfield? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, Jerry Canfield, Town of Newburgh. Just for clarification, the parking requirements are one in two hundred for the first twenty thousand square feet, which counts out to eighteen, eighteen spaces.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Any other questions, comments? Do we have a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher has joined us: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Segali: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:30 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:55 PM)

PHILIP E. & ELAINE J. SEGALI

275 ROUTE 17K, NBGH







(90-1-2) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation of the decision and resolution dated January 18, 1985 for a use variance to permit the construction of a model home/office in an R-3 District. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Philip E. and Elaine J. Segali, 275 Route 17K, seeking an interpretation of the decision and resolution dated January 18, 1985 for a use variance to permit the construction of a model home/office in an R-3 District. This is Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Eaton: Mr. Segali said that he will continue to use it for business. He's only going to continue the use as Schoonmakers did, Mr. Steinberg. I think he will limit who his tenants are.

Mr. Donovan: If the Board is inclined I think that the motion would be that the application submitted and the testimony elicited this evening indicates that the use proposed is consistent with the use for which the use variance was granted in 1985.

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to state everything you just said.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms. Eaton: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:56 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:30 PM) 


JON & TOM JADROSICH


9 DOWNING AVENUE, NBGH







(82-1-27) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the one side yard, both side yards, the lot building coverage, lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the height with a second story to build a 2-story addition on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Jon and Tom Jadrosich.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on May 13th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on May 14th. The applicant sent out twelve registered letters, eleven were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. You may begin.

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Good evening, it seems that we're trying to apply for an area variance. The setbacks are much different today than they were when the structure was constructed and built. I was first introduced to this structure in 1957 and it stood as it is today so I think the rules changed and the structure was there. We are endeavoring to bring it up to Code for safety purposes, going to use it for a single-family dwelling and we are going to occupy it. We are going to maintain the same footprint that we have on the existing structure. 

Mr. Manley: Sir, could you just identify yourself for the record, please? 

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Thomas Jadrosich.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Mr. Jadrosich (Jon): Jon Jadrosich.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes? Please stand and speak into the microphone and state your name and residence.

Mr. Kartiganer: Drew Kartiganer, I live at 30 Meadow Street, my father received one of these letters related to the variance.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Kartiganer: I'm not real sure where the site is. Do you have a site plan?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Sure.

Chairperson Cardone: Would you like to look at this map also?

Mr. Kartiganer: Yes, I would.

(Mr. Kartiganer approached)

Mr. Kartiganer: That's fine. I have no problem with this.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any other questions or comments?

Ms. Drake: I have a question. When I did my site visit, I'm having a hard time figuring out where the addition, the vertical addition is. Was there actually…is that where the…?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): There was a structure there.

Ms. Drake: O.K. and it's been removed?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): And we were invaded by termites and rather than have it fall down we took it down.

Ms. Drake: How long ago was that?

Mr. Jadrosich (Jon): About a month or so.

Ms. Drake: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Jadrosich (Jon): It was an imminent collapse.

Ms. Drake: Say that again.   

Mr. Jadrosich (Jon): It was like an imminent collapse going to happen.

Ms. Drake: O.K. Thank you. 

Ms. Eaton: Did you say you owned this since 1957?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Oh, no, no, no my uncle owned and we moved him off into an assisted living complex and he insisted that we take it over and take care of it.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments?

Mr. Donovan: Let me just, if I can, we addressed this a while ago at a different application as… presumably Jerry this is one of those instances where the height is less than thirty-five feet. Correct? But one of the variances that is indicated by the Building Department is a height variance because it's increasing the degree…

Mr. Hughes: Second story.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. Even though...and we kind of addressed that issue a little bit on that application a while ago and I don't know if the Board wants to…the Building Departments opinion is that if you have a non-conformity relative to the side yard and you go up…

Mr. Hughes: You're furthering it.

Mr. Donovan: …you've increased the non-conformity of the height even though the heights not non-conforming. Remember we had this discussion. I don't know if the Board wishes to address…we were able to not address that issue in the other application because that entire house and foundation was taken down and so we didn't have to reach that issue.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe for the publics benefit you could explain further about the second story non-conformance?

Mr. Donovan: Well we have a pre-existing…do you think they are really interested Ron?

Mr. Hughes: There may be a neighbor. I'm don't know. Maybe the Building Department can make it short and sweet? Its when you go up and…

Mr. Donovan: I'm not good at short and sweet, so maybe…

Mr. Canfield: You're an attorney. Basically what we are talking is the code requirement of existing non-conforming can remain forever. Once we alter it, increase that degree of non-conformity it becomes an item that must come back before this Board. That applies to the vertical measurements as well as horizontal measurements. So, if you are looking at a birds eye view of like a plot plan like is before us, you are looking horizontal distances. O.K.? Between property lines and where the building goes but it also applies vertically into air space. O.K.? Even though as Dave had touched on there is a building height requirement which is a maximum feet of thirty-feet that's not the issue here. We're still increasing that degree of non-conformity. If you took that plane, that horizontal plane and tipped it vertically it would still apply. 

Mr. Donovan: And I guess I questioned that a little bit. I wasn't sure that I necessarily agreed with Jerry's interpretation if we're five feet away from the side yard lot line and we build back another twenty feet and we're certainly increasing the degree of non-conformity. I raised the question if we're five feet back, twenty feet high, you stay five feet back we simply go up another ten feet we're thirty feet high but not over thirty-five feet Jerry's interpretation is that's an increase the degree of non-conformity. I am not so sure that I agree with that but I bring it up to the Board if the Board agrees with the Building Department then there is no issue there.

Mr. Manley: I think an area I would agree with the Building Department and kind of site with them is that in the event that you ran into a situation where there was objection from neighbors because a person is going up let's say in height and they are increasing the degree of non-conformity there may be an issue of view-scape. Perhaps you may be in an area like Orange Lake where you know the neighbor is going up increasing the degree of non-conformity and the neighbors are…they are going to lose potentially their view. I think it just seems to me…

Mr. Donovan: Well I think that's the argument, I just didn't…we seemed to have a discussion and we weren't…at least it wasn't clear in my mind whether or not we wanted to take a position or the Board wanted to take a position and say we render a different interpretation if you're under thirty-five to begin with and you don't go over thirty-five then you are not increasing the degree of the non-conformity relative to height. If the Board says no because the mass has changed that's the interpretation of the Building Department and we just need to follow that.

Mr. Hughes: I think that like everything that we get involved with here when it comes here it's illegal to begin with and its on a case per case basis however I must agree with Jerry not just in this case but generically to State and what they tell you what you need to know about zoning tells you that when you go up on that second story to put it simply the building is here and it's too close to the property line...it's too close to the property line up here too.

Mr. Donovan: Well I agree that you increase the degree of the non-conformity relative to the side yard, my issue is the…

Mr. Hughes: There is no height problem.

Chairperson Cardone: It's the height.

Mr. Donovan: …is whether or not you've the degree of non-conformity relative to height which I think is the Building Department's opinion. Correct?

Mr. Canfield: Yes. And also to elaborate on that we've been questioned in several areas that is now becoming more of an issue, areas with a view shed. So in an attempt to come up with a consistent response to cover most areas that's been our position and we would like to maintain that. However, Dave you hit the nail on the head and so did you Ron that in a case that's unique such as that application that you are referring to it's always been our position that we act very cautiously and refer it to the Board if it is something we do not feel comfortable with but take it into consideration the vertical plane and in light of or attempting to protect view-sheds which becomes more and more of an issue in our society here that's been our position. That's partly the reason for it.

Mr. Jadrosich (Jon):  For me, the house is sited directly behind an apartment structure that's probably two or three times higher than the roofline that we have so there is a certain change in grade, change in elevation as well as height of the building that…and we're not even going far back enough to even obstruct that particular dwelling, the multiple dwelling so the idea is to stay within the footprint and the existing ridgeline and pretty much rebuild what's there without obstructing anybody.

Mr. Maher: You stated you had taken the structure down completely?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Just that portion of it that we're going to go up for a second story.

Mr. Maher: So there's a small section that was taken down?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Yes sir. Yes sir.

Mr. Maher: An addition is going on the second floor is going on part of the existing…?

Mr. Jadrosich (Jon): It's getting rebuilt and then just up top with the ridgeline.

Mr. Maher: O.K. 

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Maintain the ridgeline.

Mr. Canfield: Miss Chairman?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Canfield: I have a question. We keep using the phrase keeping the same footprint but based on what I have in front of me reviewed by Mr. Mattina of our office the addition also entails a connecting part to the existing garage.

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): That's correct.

Mr. Canfield: Is that correct?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Yes, it's a breezeway.

Mr. Canfield: O.K. breezeway. For clarification then now we view this all as one structure. O.K.? So that's where most of these requests come in because that's how we're viewing it, as it's all one structure. In that sense the footprint has increased, you know, substantially. O.K.?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you Mr. Canfield. I'd like to read the Orange County Department of Planning report

Based on our review of the materials submitted regarding the above referenced site plan in accordance with Section 239 paragraphs l and m of the General Municipal Law, we do not have any significant inter-community or Countywide considerations to bring to your attention.   

Ms. Drake: So then, if I could ask Jerry a question? When the form that came from your office down where it says they need five (5) variances it's because that breezeway it's now becoming one building and the lot coverage includes that?

Mr. Canfield: That's correct. 

Ms. Drake: My question for the applicant, what's going to go in that area because you are not on Town sewer? Is that going to be another bedroom?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): No, no, no it's just going to be a breezeway so we can get from the house to the….

Ms. Drake: No, I mean the second floor.

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): No, no just a breezeway.

Ms. Drake: I mean the addition where you're going up.

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): It's just a larger bedroom.

Ms. Drake:  How many bedrooms do you have now and how many will you have?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): One big one and one little one then we are going to have two big ones.  

Ms. Drake: O.K. thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: You are going to have just two bedrooms?

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Yes the small bedroom is going to get larger that's all.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Jadrosich (Tom): Thank you very much.

(Time Noted – 7:44PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:56 PM)

JON & TOM JADROSICH


9 DOWNING AVENUE, NBGH







(82-1-27) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the one side yard, both side yards, the lot building coverage, lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the height with a second story to build a 2-story addition on the residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Jon and Tom Jadrosich, 9 Downing Avenue, seeking area variances for the one side yard, both side yards, the lot building coverage, lot surface coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the height with a second story to build a 2-story addition on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: I don't really see where the addition, the second floor is really going to have a major impact on the neighbors. Although I still agree that it's important that these type of actions come before us to determine whether or not they would have significant impacts to the neighbors as Mr. Canfield mentioned before. This is one that I don't think really has a big problem.

Mr. McKelvey: They are not going to block any view of that house up on the hill behind it either. 

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:57 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:44 PM) 


DAVID VAN WAGNER


403 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(17-1-42) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 12' x 18' side deck on residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant David Van Wagner.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on May 13th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on May 14th. The applicant sent out twenty-one registered letters, twenty-one were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Van Wagner: Hi, my name is David Van Wagner, 403 Fostertown Road. 

Ms. Gennarelli: You can take that mic off there if you'd like or you can make it higher.

Mr. Van Wagner: Oh, it's all right.

Ms. Gennarelli: We need it a certain so that it picks up.

Mr. McKelvey: You can raise that thing.

Mr. Donovan: It may be all right with you but it's not all right with Betty, so…

Mr. Van Wagner: Good?

Ms. Gennarelli: That's good. Thank you.

Mr. Van Wagner: Anything for Betty.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. state your request please.

Mr. Van Wagner: Well my application is in; I got it back from the Town refused. I want to put in an 8 x 12 deck off the north side of my house. It will improve the looks of the house and cover up the grass that doesn't grow. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board?  

Ms. Drake: Is there any reason why you couldn't change the 8 and the 12 a different direction so that you don't have it as close to the property line? Just switch them?

Mr. Van Wagner: Not really, the only reason I put it the way I did is because there the pool deck behind it sticks out about the same so it would kind of line up and look aesthetically correct more so than if I turned it sideways it would look kind of like steps going out.

Ms. Drake: Because your plan doesn't show the pool so we don't see that there.

Mr. Van Wagner: No, it's in the pictures I sent that's…I don't know who has those. 

Ms. Drake: Yes, I have the pictures. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? No other questions from the Board?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Van Wagner: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:46 PM)

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:57 PM)

DAVID VAN WAGNER


403 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH







(17-1-42) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 12' x 18' side deck on residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of David Van Wagner, 403 Fostertown Road, seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 12' x 18' side deck on residence. And I'd like to read the County report which I neglected to read before for the record

Based on our review of the materials submitted regarding the above referenced site plan in accordance with Section 239, paragraphs l and m of the General Municipal Law we do not have any significant inter-community or countywide considerations to bring to your attention. 

This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion? 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve? 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 9:59 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:46 PM) 


EDWARD BIAGINI


CORNER OF RIVER RD & OAK ST, NBGH






(9-3-56) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot depth, front yard south setback, front yard/north setback, building height and lot surface coverage to build a new single-family residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Edward Biagini.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on May 13th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on May 14th. The applicant sent out ten registered letters, eight were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

Mr. Reineke: Good evening, my name is Steve Reineke; I am here on behalf of the property owner. I got involved in this after the application had gone in and when I looked at the plan that is before the Board I asked the engineer to add some information. It's got a vicinity map and we clarified the zoning data apparently information got carried over from a previous plan that hadn't been acted on. Shall I submit that to the Board now?

Chairperson Cardone: You may.   

(Mr. Reineke approached)

Mr. Reineke: The main reason that I had asked for the additional information to be shown on the map, I think the vicinity map up on the right corner gives you a much better feel for the property in question. This property is, because it is on two roads, is a lot that requires double front yard setbacks. That's one of the variances that's being requested. What's kind of odd with this lot is that Oak Street is actually a very large area and if you look at the map you'll see that approximately 45 feet or so separates the graveled drive portion of Oak Street from the property line so one of our front yard setback requirements is an 8 foot proposed where 50 feet is needed. That would be from the back corner of the deck to the property line but as you can see from looking at the map itself you then go out another 45 feet before you even reach the gravel drive portion of Oak Street. 

Mr. Manley: Oak street is a Town Road? Yes?

Mr. Reineke: It appears on the tax maps as a Town road. It's only gravel at that end of it. It apparently gets paved when you go further up.

Mr. Manley: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Much further up.

Mr. Reineke: Yes, much further up.

Mr. Manley: The big question is that at some point the Town may indeed improve that road.

Mr. Reineke: It could.

Mr. Manley: And if they do the road could move closer to the property line. Correct?

Mr. Reineke: That is certainly possible as you get closer to the property line the grade gets much steeper and you have utility poles that run there but yes it's certainly possible. If the Town wanted do that type of cut and fill it could get closer. Yes.

Mr. Manley: Just a quick question, Mr. Canfield? What is the current requirement for a Town road…the width? Is it…? Private is 40.

Mr. Canfield: The area is 50 feet.

Mr. Manley: 50?

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And do you know roughly what…I don't recall, Oak Street isn't that wide at that area if I remember.

Mr. Canfield: Oak Street in this area is nothing more than a dirt road. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: There's extensive drainage problems there it's constantly washing out. Oak Street is listed as a Town road. It's maintained by the Town and has been for a number of years. But I can honestly say it doesn't comply with today's road standards if that answers your question. But in short Jim the requirement is 50 feet that's inclusive of ditch line.

Mr. Manley: So if its currently 25 or even let's go 30 feet if they were to improve it and do cut and fill you'd be looking at another maybe 20 feet in from the…closer to the property line of this particular property, yes?

Mr. Canfield: Yes the difficulty here is actually the engineer has done a pretty good job of locating where the road is. I don't doubt exactly where the road bed as its depicted but the unique part of this is that from the rear property line to where the roadbed is depicted appears to be a gourd of land that on the tax map shows as part of the roadbed which in actuality it isn't so its uncertain who actually owns that. I would assume it’s the Town however I didn't extensively research that. On the tax maps it depicts that it is part of the road.

Mr. Manley: O.K. thank you. Sorry to interrupt.

Ms. Drake: I'd like to clarify something though. It's the right of way that's 50 foot. The Town road width actual road width is 25 foot or something like that, right? It’s the right of way that's 50 foot.

Mr. Canfield: Yes Brenda.

Ms. Drake: So it doesn't mean the road width of the Town road would be 50 feet.

Mr. Manley: Right. Just the property that they would need, shoulders, drainage…

Mr. Canfield: No not totally correct. A right of way depends on the type of road and there's several classifications of road. O.K.? It could be anywhere from 50 feet of the center line of the road each way would be the right of way. 

Ms. Drake: Oh.

Mr. Canfield: The actual land or dedication for a roadway, a Town road is 50 feet and that encompass the drainage or the ditch line each side. The actual paved area could be 20 to 30 feet. I believe it's 30 feet.

Ms. Drake: O.K.  I'd like to ask when the applicant purchased the property?

Mr. Reineke: I believe it was late 1990's, '98, '99.

Ms. Drake: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Was there any attempt to purchase any land nearby to increase the size of the lot?

Mr. Reineke: Well as you can see from the vicinity map and again looking at it, it’s a triangular shaped lot and the only land that isn't roadway is already developed as a single-family residence. There is no vacant land adjoining it at all.

Mr. Donovan: Do you know how the lot was created?

Mr. Reineke: I know that the lot was conveyed…our predecessor in title acquired the lot in 1967, how it was created…I didn't go back beyond…

Mr. Donovan: Was it due to a subdivision or…?

Mr. Reineke: It did not reference a subdivision map, it was a metes and bounds description and that was in 1967. Did I answer your question on…?

Mr. Donovan: No because I interrupted her so I don't think you got the chance to answer the question, sorry.

Chairperson Cardone: I did ask the question and…?

Mr. Reineke: Yes, if you look on the vicinity map the only land that adjoins this lot is at the back end from the intersection and that is currently a single-family dwelling on that lot. As a matter of fact, the parcel that adjoins this is a single-family, the rectangular piece that you see on the vicinity map is also a single-family and that larger piece that has a "U" around the rectangular lot is also developed as a single-family but the house is set significantly far back.

Chairperson Cardone: It wasn't obvious from the road.

Mr. Reineke: No, it wouldn't be.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: I have some questions. Jerry (Canfield)? Maybe you can refresh the Board's memory here and mine as well…I'm not sure that Oak Street is a street by Title and Right. We had a session that went on that both River Road and Oak Street at this intersection point here is questionable about ownership and that the Town has the right to use it but doesn't have the deeded right to own it but maintains it anyway. And where this came up, we were in the discussions for the Greenway Trail and the River Park at the bottom of Oak Street and that's how I know about the questions of entitled right, if that's the right term. Counsel?

Mr. Donovan: Well, I don't know enough…I mean it could…I am going to guess although it could be a highway by use…

Mr. Hughes: It is by use.

Mr. Donovan: …the Town does not have title to…

Mr. Hughes: That's River Road and then there was a question about the intersection where Oak met it so I'd feel more comfortable is we knew some more information about that and the reason I say that…there's a lot of bad stuff going on here in a very constricted area. Number one, you've got nothing bedrock and shale underneath this parcel and the one that's uphill shows its septic system right, I don't know, 30 feet from the property line. Any good engineer will tell you that 200 feet down gradient in today's market is a minimum DEC requirement and for the health and welfare of your client your whole lot is only 220 feet long here from the back end of it to the apex of the triangle. Now I realize the placement of the house and I'm presuming that's a Type I system that you're depicting here in the chamber for the pump stations but still when you get that all together you don't have anything left over here. Now having said all that, let's say five years from now the Town decides to do Oak Street and River Road over and you find out that you have less of a piece of property than you have because of the right…I'm a little bit concerned about that aspect of this project. You're asking for huge differences. You are supposed to have 40,000 sq. ft. you have 12, 507; your lot depth is supposed to be a minimum of 150 you have 84; your front yard is supposed be 50 you have 33; and one side yard is supposed to be 30 and you have 55.4; both sides are supposed to be 80 you have 126 listed. I don't know how you got that. I took my scale out somebody's measurements aren't depicted properly. The front yard #2 you're supposed to have 50 you have 80 feet on. So I would be very reluctant to rule on this whatsoever until I found out a little bit more information on that road by use or deeded title right of way just so that the applicant and his attorney are aware of those factors and our Board as well.

Chairperson Cardone: I see that you are also looking for a height variance. What is the reason for that?  

Mr. Reineke: I believe that that's where the…Mr. Canfield could maybe give us some clue on that…the most of the structure is under the 35 feet but on the garage side in order to have the garage underneath the house it's cut down below the grade that the rest of the house is sitting on so I know on that side the…from the cut grade where the garage entrance will be to the peak, I think, is the 37 but…that's what I believe it is.

Mr. Canfield: Yes no you're correct. The maximum height is 35 feet, the area of concern is the which would be the north section of the house of the house and again the two front yards is the issue. Again the definition of building height is the street side of the house. In this case Oak Street would be a street also that's where the 37 feet, we believe, would be. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.


Mr. Hughes: How many bedrooms is this?

Mr. Reineke: Emily?

Ms. Drake: The septic shows it's designed for three bedrooms.

Mr. Reineke: Three bedrooms.   

Mr. Hughes: And off street parking where…for three bedrooms you are going have three cars, let's say?

Mr. Reineke: Two cars.

Mr. Hughes: Two cars. You are not planning on having any kids soon?

Mr. Reineke: There is a garage underneath as well.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Reineke: Two-car garage is what's shown on the building plan.

Mr. Hughes: I see that but even at that with the driveway location where it is and with two cars underneath you'd have to move another one to get in and out. Off street parking in that area is a disaster. I have nothing else. Thank you for answering those questions.  

Ms. Eaton: Is this house being built on speculation?

Mr. Reineke: Actually, Emily is hoping to be able to live there. She is the daughter of the property owner. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: Just one further comment on what Ron had said based on the scaling of the drawings and up gradient there's about a 10 foot up gradient where the Elgin leach fields would be. If I scaled it correctly its only about 140 foot separation to the well although it may not be an issue for this Board just so the applicants aware if the Board should choose to approve this, this separation is not acceptable. You may need to go for a more elaborate septic system or petition the Board of Health to reduce those separations. That's an option. 

Mr. Zimmerman: Is it the well…?

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse could you hand over the mic? Thanks. And, please identify yourself for the record? 

Mr. Zimmerman: My name is Jerry Zimmerman, the engineer for the project. Was it the house on lot 55, the well on lot 55 that you're referring to?

Mr. Canfield: I am referring to the well depicted on this map servicing this house. 

Mr. Hughes: It's out by the apex of the triangle. 

Mr. Zimmerman: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Canfield: To the north of the house.

Mr. Zimmerman: Well that…if you're referring that it needs to be 200 feet?

Mr. Canfield: 200 feet down gradient.

Mr. Zimmerman: Yes but the way this is depicted and designed the well was not directly downhill and as a result that separation could be less than the 200 by Health Department requirements. So it could be, because we did check that out before placing it on the plan. 

Mr. Canfield: Yeah Jerry (Zimmerman) I'm just commenting on what the contour lines are 2 foot contours and as they show here it appears to be an 8 foot, 8 to 10 foot…

Mr. Zimmerman: No I understand that.

Mr. Canfield: …uphill from the well. So the well being down here, the leech fields up here there's according to what I'm seeing a 2-foot contours, there's only like a 10 foot, 8 to 10 foot elevation difference so I would determine that that well is down gradient.

Mr. Zimmerman: Right I understand that comment and question. The point I was getting at is that the well is not directly downhill of the septic system so the Health Department requirements you can vary that separation to be something less than the two hundred. What I could do is provide that information. Obviously if it is an issue we have to deal with it. If I could provide the information that is satisfactory to Mr. Canfield then I think that wouldn't be an issue anymore.  

Mr. McKelvey: Wouldn't he have to satisfy the County Code, Jerry (Canfield)?

Mr. Canfield: Yes, and I think you said the magic words Jerry (Zimmerman) that…that a lesser separation is actually the jurisdiction of the Health Department and if you can achieve approval from them or their requirements for what a separation is required and acceptable (to them) then that's acceptable to us.

Mr. Zimmerman: Yeah, that's fine. 

Mr. Hughes: If I may? You see where the fall line of this is and what are you interpolating as a percentage ratio variance and that it can't be more than plus or minus 5 feet, read the core contour lines it's almost directly downhill from the road.

Mr. Zimmerman: Well why don't I provide the information that I feel would demonstrate what the requirements by the Health Department is and if necessary we would get a letter from the Health Department to address that issue.

Mr. Hughes: Could you tell us also what type of system that is that you have there?

Mr. Zimmerman: Yes, the septic system design is called an Elgin In-drain system which is an acceptable Health Department approved type of a system and its frequently and commonly used and its an inexpensive system to build, it costs the same as a conventional system however the size of the system could be substantially smaller because of the construction that you use in this type of system.

Mr. Hughes: Continuous pump or is it on and off? Is there a backup pump?

Mr. Zimmerman: Well in this case, a pump is required whether its an Elgin or not. Elgin doesn't necessarily require a pump but in this case this is where we got suitable soil percolation and as a result we have to pump to the system.  

Mr. Hughes: I thought that all pumps had to be a Type I and that was the only type that they allowed in New York State.

Mr. Zimmerman: I am not necessarily familiar with the term Type I but again the pump that we would design would be acceptable by, you know, the Town as well as the Health Department.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for answering those questions. I'd really feel more comfortable about knowing about those roads.

Ms. Drake: I have one more question. Is there an option or did the applicant consider doing a two-bedroom house instead of a three-bedroom house? 

Mr. Reineke: No.

Ms. Drake: Would that be an option that the applicant would consider?

Mr. Reineke: I can certainly ask that of the applicant but for what purpose?

Ms. Drake: Smaller septic, smaller house, less off street parking, less cars…it's a tight three-bedroom house on a very small lot. 

Mr. Reineke: Yeah, well maybe the house footprint could be smaller. The utilities themselves garage and septic system would be approximately the same size but its true the house footprint possibly could be smaller.

Ms. Drake: The septic would be smaller if it’s the size for a two-bedroom house not a three-bedroom.

Mr. Reineke: Yeah, slightly smaller.

Mr. Manley: And the existing zoning has been in place for quite some time with the requirements are currently set in the Code so the amount of the variance is substantial. In some cases a…

Chairperson Cardone: 68 and 84%.

Mr. Manley: That makes a big difference.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have any kind of report on the neighbor's septic system next door.

Mr. Zimmerman: (Inaudible)

Mr. Reineke: The answer was no.

Mr. Hughes: Jerry (Canfield) would there be records on that? Maybe we could track something down there? I'd feel a lot more comfortable knowing what's under the ground there as well. If they have a faulty system or is a poor design and basically that whole thing runs downhill like this if they've got just pipes in the ground guess what's filling your well; 44% of ground water makes your well water. 

Mr. Reineke: If I could just respond to the comment over here I agree that the variance requests are significant but again if you do look at the vicinity map the property immediately adjoining ours is actually a slightly smaller parcel and the house moving to the west which is on that rectangular piece is also a slightly smaller parcel. So those…our property is not significantly different from the next two houses on that side of River Road.

Mr. Manley: Jerry (Canfield) what are the Code requirements or maybe we have a book on the R-3 that's serviced by sewer and water? What are the lot area requirements in an R-3?

Mr. Canfield: This is an R-1.

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Canfield: But you want to know about R-3?

Mr. Manley: Correct. Do you happen to have that?

Mr. Canfield: R-3, lot area 40,000 sq. ft.; with public sewer, public water 12.5; with either or that would mean one entity, one public water or public sewer is 15,000 sq.ft.

Mr. Manley: So if this particular lot was in an R-3 location served by sewer and water it would only meet the zoning requirements by 7 square feet and now you're coming to this Board here for a very significant variance. This isn't an R-3 zone it's an R-1 and it’s a huge, it's a huge request and potentially causes this Board to set precedent with respect to other lots of similar size and similar circumstance and that's part of the issue as well that I think that I'm battling here.

Mr. Reineke: Right. I agree that the Board should take into consideration similar size lots of similar circumstance and that's why I was pointing out on the vicinity map you've got two existing lots that are currently with homes on them and all we're asking for is the ability to put a home on a lot that is similar in size, actually a little bit larger, but very similar in size to what exists there in the neighborhood.

Mr. Hughes: I agree with what you're saying about the lot size but that lot that you referred to in comparison doesn't have a neighbors septic looming right over the top of it uphill.

Ms. Drake: It's also not restricted on two sides by roads which make a lot of the area in lot in question not buildable where on the square lots more area is buildable.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? 

Ms. Drake: I suggest we keep the Public Hearing open to get more information, for the applicant to determine whether they would reduce it to a two-bedroom and get information in reference to how the Health Department would evaluate the septic system.

Chairperson Cardone: And also Mr. Hughes wanted some information on the…

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Reineke: The adjoining septic and the road ownership I think were the other items that were…but basically four, as I understand it, four items, reduction in the size…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Reineke: …the ownership issue on Oak, the existing septic on the adjoining lot if we could determine any information on that and I didn't write them down. So I got three out of four…I'm sorry what was the fourth? Oh, the more details on the Health Department.

Ms. Drake: The Health Department right.

Mr. Donovan: My only comment on the last issue is that it is a little bit beyond our jurisdiction.

Mr. Hughes: It's information for health purposes.

Mr. Donovan: I am not disputing that it's not but…

Mr. Reineke: It's information though that we would need to have anyway…

Mr. Donovan: Oh, of course.

Mr. Reineke: So we certainly don't mind providing it to the Board. 

Mr. Donovan: Of course. Just to clarify our charge.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to hold the Public Hearing open? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Donovan: And that would be until the fourth Thursday in June?

Ms. Drake: June 26th. 

Mr. Reineke: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Ms Drake: Second: 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 8:14 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 8:14 PM) 


LUCAS & TRACY SHUTA         

142 LESTER CLARK ROAD, NBGH







(6-1-132) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback by converting the deck to an enclosed kitchen with a 12 x 10' deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Lucas and Tracy Shuta.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on May 13th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on May 14th. The applicant sent out eleven registered letters, ten were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. You may begin.

Ms. Shuta: Hi, I'm Tracy Shuta. I'm here for a variance to convert my back deck into an enclosed kitchen with a 12 x 10 deck attached to that.

Mr. Hughes: You are a regular here, huh? This is the one that has part of the property in Ulster and part in ours?

Ms. Shuta: Yes, and that's why. They are looking at the Town line. I actually have 100 feet behind my house but the Town line is where they are looking at between the Ulster and Orange County.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes they were here in 2005 the last time.

Mr. Hughes: And '01, this is the third time.

Chairperson Cardone: The third time, right.

Mr. Hughes: The only thing that is really unusual about it is the fact that the line is right there. It appears that it was segmented but they've been adding on and adding on. They were given the directions in preference suggesting that they keep all of the buildings in the Orange County portion and actually they don't have a problem with limits to the backyard but its in the next County.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: And that's what makes it very unusual.

Mr. Donovan: Now I have to ask this question. Was the street named after the 'Lester Clark'?  

Ms. Shuta: Don't know.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: God rest his soul. He passed away recently for those of you who knew him. He was a character.

Chairperson Cardone: I'd like to read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning

Based on our review of the materials submitted regarding the above referenced site plan in accordance with Section 239, paragraphs l and m of the General Municipal Law we do not have any significant inter-community or countywide considerations to bring to your attention. 

The Recommendation is Local Determination. Any questions or comments from the public? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Shuta: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:17 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 9:59PM)

LUCAS & TRACY SHUTA         

142 LESTER CLARK ROAD, NBGH







(6-1-132) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback by converting the deck to an enclosed kitchen with a 12 x 10' deck. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Lucas and Tracy Shuta at142 Lester Clark Road, seeking an area variance for increasing the degree of non-conformity of the rear yard setback by converting the deck to an enclosed kitchen with a 12 x 10' deck.  This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I don't see where this addition would impact any surrounding neighbors and there aren't too many back there. I make a motion to approve the application. 

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:00 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 8:17 PM) 


MICHAEL & JANET VELEZ

1 COBBLE CREEK DRIVE, NBGH







(117-3-7) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an in-ground pool in a front yard. (has two front yards Cobble Creek Drive and North Fostertown Road. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Michael and Janet Velez.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on May 13th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on May 14th. The applicant sent out thirteen registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. You may begin.

Mr. Velez: Good evening, my name Michael and this is Janet Velez, we are applying for an area variance to build an in-ground pool in what is considered…we have corner lot and we are considered to have two front yards. The entrance to our dwelling is on Cobble Creek Drive and the Fostertown Road area is completely fenced in so there is no view of that part of the property from Fostertown Road.

Chairperson Cardone: You have to be tall enough to look over the fence.

Mr. Velez: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: I was there. Do we have any questions from the Board?

Ms. Velez: I just wanted to add, this is our first home, we didn’t realize that this was considered to be two front yards and we had a jungle-gym built on the opposite side so that is one of the reasons we're requesting for the in-ground pool on this side and also there's electrical underneath the opposite end which would me that there would be a lot more to do.

Mr. McKelvey: You would still have two front yards though.

Ms. Velez: I'm sorry?

Mr. McKelvey: You would still have two front yards.

Ms. Velez: Yes, no I realize.

Ms. Drake: Just so you know I was the one stopped by when you weren't at home, I talked to you on the phone.

Ms. Velez: Oh.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes? Please state your name and address and use the microphone.

Mr. Purpura: Jim Purpura, North Fostertown, I'm two houses away from him. I've been there for twenty-five years, my well is 80 feet deep, do these people have Town water do you know?

Mr. Velez: We have a well.

Mr. Purpura: You have a well. O.K. When this development was put behind me with all the Reiger Homes my well used to overflow everyday without a problem. Since all those homes were put in it doesn't come anywhere near overflowing. I only have 80 feet. If these people are going to, which I don't know whether you are going to or not but if they stick their garden hose in here to refill that pool every springtime my well is going down and I have a neighbor that will have the same problem. That's the only concern that I have. I don't know what their intentions are.

Chairperson Cardone: We could ask that question.

Mr. Purpura: Could we get an answer on that?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Velez: I'd be happy to answer that. We are planning on going with an outside service to fill the pool for us. 

Mr. Purpura: So they don't use the well water at all. Every year, right?

Mr. Velez: Every year.

Mr. Purpura: O.K. that's my main concern.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. McKelvey: You would still have to add to it occasionally though.

Mr. Velez: No we would still use this company. They would give us their filtered water for us.

Mr. McKelvey: O.K.

Ms. Velez: One of the reasons we had originally decided this was because of the chemicals in the natural water, there's a lot of iron and everything else so we decided to go with an outside source so we wouldn't have to use much chemicals in the pool. We are having a saltwater system put in so we won't need the harsh chemicals and everything else. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? 

 Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Velez: Thank you for your time.

(Time Noted – 8:22 PM)

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:00 PM)

MICHAEL & JANET VELEZ

1 COBBLE CREEK DRIVE, NBGH







(117-3-7) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an in-ground pool in a front yard. (has two front yards Cobble Creek Drive and North Fostertown Road. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Michael and Janet Velez, 1 Cobble Creek Drive seeking an area variance to build an in-ground pool in a front yard has two front yards. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: This really goes back to the first one that we handled tonight. Very common especially in the larger developments you have two front yards. 

Mr. McKelvey: I think they satisfied the water issue by having a private company handle all the water for them. 

Mr. Manley: I would make a motion we approve this application.

Ms. Eaton: I'll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:01 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 8:22 PM) 


FAJILATUN HUDA


172 BROOKSIDE FARMS ROAD, NBGH






(97-1-15) IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking a use variance for discontinuance of permitted use of 1-family residence in an IB zone to do interior alterations and repairs of house. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Fajilatun Huda, 172 Brookside Farms Road.

Mr. Bloom: Good evening, I am Dan Bloom. I am the attorney for Ms. Huda and since our last meeting I have furnished the Board and counsel with a copy of the deed that had been requested concerning the right of way and I have also supplied to the Board and counsel a Title Insurance Policy or actually a binder of Title Insurance from Horizon Title Abstract insuring access to the premises over Brookside and the private roads and with permission of the Board I'd like to hand up at this time a copy for counsel and a copy for the Board of the actual Title Policies themselves which were faxed to me today. 

(Mr. Bloom approached.)

Mr. Donovan: If the Board will recall, first of all obviously this an application for a use variance with a fair amount of proof and testimony that has been put on the record before and one of the outstanding issues was the ability of this property to utilize the Brookside Farm Road for ingress and egress. There has been a fair amount of…there was a Title Policy that was originally submitted that insured access by way of saying…was a standard boiler-plate in any title insurance policy that says unless access is not perfectly denied that it's insured…I suggested to Mr. Bloom that I didn't think that that was good enough because it could have been a mistake by the title insurance company and I asked for a letter from a title company affirmatively stating that this property had access over Brookside Farm Road. Mr. Bloom has provided to me and I've seen before a letter from Horizon Title Services dated April 8, that affirmatively insures that the property in question has the right to use Brookside Farm Road. So, Mr. Bloom has provided to me the proof that I had asked him to do rather that I asked him to provide. So as far as I'm concerned that specific issue is satisfactorily resolved. 

Chairperson Cardone: Did we have any other issues that needed to be addressed?

Mr. Hughes: Did that include some sort of narrative description that set points and directions and so forth? I think that's what we asked for.

Mr. Donovan: Well that's certainly what you asked for. I don't…do you have a copy? This would be under Mr. Bloom's cover of April 16… 

Chairperson Cardone:  Right, it does…on the first page.

Mr. Hughes: And this is from today? This is what you're saying?

Chairperson Cardone: No. 

Mr. Hughes: Oh yeah, I have a copy of that from before but this is what came in today?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: From the title company?

Ms. Drake: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Is that from the 19th?

Chairperson Cardone: But this is the document that…

Mr. Hughes: From 1932 or so?  

Chairperson Cardone: …satisfies what we had asked for. Where there any other questions or comments from the public? Yes, please state your name and address in the microphone. 

Mr. Griffin: My name is David Griffin and I own 174 Brookside Farm Road. The question is here is not access from Brookside Farm Road. Each of the buildings there - 170, 172, 174, 176 - in their deed say together with the right in common with others to use for the purpose described as ingress and egress from the premises herein before described the private road from Stewart Avenue and Cochecton Turnpike which the road going through, as the Board has been there, I own in front of the Huda's residence and around the corner. So the access that they're looking to do is not off of Brookside Farm Road it's through my property. If in fact they think that that access is on Brookside Farm Road my building would be a tunnel because the road would go right through it. Also in doing this, giving him this access, I'm not only losing part of my property but I'm losing access to my building at different times. I have a 24-hour business and should there be cars in the way or a truck there that's parked I can't get to my building, my garage door. I've been there for over 25 years, the reason this house has had so many problems before is it's been sold three times before at auction before Mr. Huda took it that this has been one of the several problems that the building has. 

Mr. Hughes: I have a question on this thing that came in today. Would you want to address the person first?

Mr. Donovan: Well I understand what Mr. Griffin has said and I think he made that point earlier at an earlier Public Hearing.

Mr. Griffin: Right.

Mr. Donovan: And based upon that we asked Mr. Bloom to provide proof that this property had the right to access over Brookside Farm Road. The letter that we have from Horizon Title Services indicates that…let me read the whole thing,

Enclosed is amended title report with the access insurance that you had requested together with our bill. I also enclose a copy of part of the 1903 Atlas. If you will look very carefully in the center of the copy you will hopefully make out a lane show as parallel dash lines running from Union Avenue, now Stewart Avenue northerly, and then easterly to a road which became Route 52. This is the early Brookside Farm Road to which rights of access were granted in Liber 1019, page 232 and is the basis for insuring said rights in the enclosed title report.  

Mr. Hughes: All right, now in this package that was faxed this afternoon it goes to what it says is Owner's Policy Schedule B and it tells me the following are expressly excluded from coverage of policy and the company will not pay loss or damages, costs, attorney's fees or expenses which may arise be reason of and it lists three things and two of the three things say…policy affirmatively assures that there are no restrictions of record prohibiting the parking of automobiles on the premises. Three (3) says the pertinent water rights and the right of way in Liber 1019, page 232, the one you just cited…policy affirmative insure rights of ingress and egress therein in favor of the premises to Brookside Farm Road a public highway. So why does the opening statement say that it doesn't include that? It's very confusing.

Mr. Donovan: Well…

Mr. Hughes: Do you want to read this again?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: No. No need to. But what it does say is…

Mr. Hughes: The following are expressly excluded from the coverage of the policy and it lists two of the three things…

Mr. Donovan: That's your standard insurance and then what it says is then is policy affirmatively insures rights of ingress and egress, in favor of the premises to Brookside Farm Road a public highway.

Mr. Hughes: No, it's telling you that that's one of the three things that it's listing that it's expressly excluding.

Mr. Donovan: No it's not saying that.

Mr. Hughes: No?

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Griffin: Well they have access coming down to the road to the property but they don't have access coming through my property to get to that unless they want to put a driveway in front where Brookside Farm meets their property. Where that access is it's not Brookside Farm Road. That's David R. Griffin's property who has been paying taxes on it for over twenty-five years.

Mr. Donovan: Well, I mean I don't, there's nothing here… 

Mr. Hughes: It's ambiguous.

Mr. Donovan: Well it's not really ambiguous what it is is that's your standard boilerplate. 

Mr. Hughes: Well, yeah, I know we read them all the time.

Mr. Donovan: And then what's…yeah, O.K., but it specifically says the policy affirmatively insures rights of ingress and egress. Now if Mr. Griffin is saying it doesn’t say from this driveway, I mean I don't think that there is an issue as to whether or not they can use that driveway. I don't know that the Board is that concerned about it. The concern that the Board raised was whether or not the property had access over Brookside Farm Road.

Mr. Griffin: Which it does not.

Mr. Donovan: Well…

Chairperson Cardone: It does according to this.

Mr. Hughes: I'm really confused and I think what he's talking about is something different than I'm talking about. Do you want to listen to this one more time or do you want to read it yourself? Let me tell you the opening sentence.

Mr. Donovan: I keep reading it myself and I understand what it says. You want to tell me it says something else. 

Mr. Hughes: Well, no, I'm just reading what it says in English…. The following are expressly excluded from the coverage of the policy…if there is an exclusion the three (3) things listed under that are excluded. Maybe someone else can read it and make some sense of it. I don't follow it.

Mr. Donovan: I can make perfect sense of it Ron. I think.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: And, what it says is this property has right, it doesn't says it has right at the driveway that's shown but what it says is this property has rights of ingress and egress over the road.

Mr. Hughes: Well I think we've got something mixed up here.

Mr. Griffin: Well that's an insurance policy that if it doesn't happen then the insurance policy has to cover Mr. Huda's money because it doesn't exist. Thus we have title insurance.

Mr. Hughes: Well it says $35,000 too. I been listening to $135,000 something doesn't add up here.

Mr. Donovan: I don't know that the amount let me just rephrase it; the amount doesn't make a difference. What I asked for was an opinion of title that says that this property has the right to use Brookside Farm Road. That's what this says. That's what the letter of Bob McEachern from Horizon Title of April 8th says affirmatively. That's what this title Policy says in Schedule B not withstanding your belief that it says something different.

Mr. Griffin: I don't disagree with that because everybody there has a right to use the road and everybody in fact can't block the road because it is a right of way but the access to that property that you want to use or take away from my spot is not Brookside Farm Road. Brookside Farm Road is another fifty (50) feet over from where this hole in the wall was put. That is not Brookside Farm Road and if you go to the deeds it clearly states where the road is, it's on the other side of my building. So that section there, I guess you've all been to take a look at it, and you can see how it's a dogleg that is not the road. The road goes around the building. So, that's my case. And again, if you decide to do this you're not only taking away from my area but you are limiting use to my building because I have to provide access if you agree to do this to my building it's a problem. Along with that which I heard tonight is that, you know, parking this is a three-bedroom house with two full baths. And maybe you can squeeze two compact cars in there I doubt it but other than that there is no parking. If you park in front of the house you are going to get run over by a tractor-trailer. There are two other properties there that surround the house that maybe something can be done, maybe not but also as far as being a commercial property the house is surrounded on three sides by commercial properties, except for the Ingram house which is to the right of them. And then we have to address the sewer also. If in fact the sewer is like they say on that plan I don't want it on my property. 

Mr. Hughes: Is there a continuance problem in the middle of all of this that we have been overlooking while we were getting other information?

Mr. Donovan: No, I think that's why we're here…because it lapsed.

Mr. Hughes: Well that's what I'm saying. Isn't the continuance the biggest problem here and the other stuff was just…?

Mr. Donovan: Oh yes, but yes. That's why we're back to the beginning is this application is for a use variance. One of the items that this Board asked and I asked Mr. Bloom to provide certain proof, which he has provided now. Mr. Griffin is saying they can't use that driveway. I'm not saying that anything that we have been provided tonight says they have the right to use that driveway. What it says is this property has the right to use Brookside Farm Road.

Mr. Hughes: Right, which… Now let me make sure I understand where that is. Is Brookside Farm Road when you come over the bridge does it continue straight or does it turn? 

Mr. Griffin: Good question. But also Jerry (Canfield) said it was a public road, which it is not because Bobby Wells plows it. If it was a Town road we wouldn't have to plow it ourselves. 

Mr. Wells: It's a Town road all the way into Crowley's. 

Mr. Griffin: O.K. So…

Mr. Wells: You let it go by mistake, my father-in-law owned that property and you let it go.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me. Could you use the mic…?

Chairperson Cardone: You have to talk into the microphone.

Ms. Gennarelli: And identify yourself, please.

Mr. Wells: I am a resident of 166 Brookside Farm Road. I have no objection of the man building a house. I've lived there for 50 years or better. A relative of mine lived in there, my father-in-law that owned the property, took the wall down and gave the people permission to go in there and we've got a right of way over that road going down through his property. So I don't see no problem. There's cars all over that in there. As far as parking, if the man is going to make a 1-family house I am happy. If you're going to make a 2-family I'm not. I mean there's four residents that live there and we're all for this because we don't want to see this place sitting there as a dump. 

Mr. Donovan: I'm sorry sir, just your name for the record?

Mr. Wells: Robert Wells.

Mr. Donovan: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: And could we ask that question of the applicant? This will be a 1-family if it is granted, correct?

Mr. Alam: Yes. It's will to be a 1-family and two persons living there, myself and my wife.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: And is it just coincidental that initials on your jacket are ROW, is that right of way?

Mr. Wells: Robert Casper Wells.

Mr. Bloom: Madam Chair, may I respond to some of the comments that were made? 

Chairperson Cardone: Certainly.

Mr. Bloom: First of all, I think it's very significant we've heard from Mr. Griffin before and I was request to submit a certified survey to the Board and to indicate on that survey that there was off street parking and we did that. And if you'll look at that survey carefully you'll see that there are notations on it that indicate the source of the right of way into this property and the other properties and makes a specific deed reference. And it also goes on to say that that deed reference and deed specifically prohibits parking of vehicles and any obstructions at all on that right of way at any time. Mr. Griffin's boat is parked, if you look at that survey, in a fashion so as to restrict the use of my client's property over the driveway that he has insured access to. So I think that should be taken into consideration as in terms of the motivation of some of the presentation this evening. With respect to Mr. Griffin attempting to qualify himself as a title expert I respectfully suggest he's not and that we have an insured Title Policy in front of this Board, which guarantees the access, insures the access to this property in and out over all the necessary private roads and public roads to the property. We were requested to obtain that. We have produced that. Now if Mr. Griffin wishes to challenge that then I respectfully suggest the appropriate way to that is to get another Title Company or title expert to come in here and challenge this. I understand that Board Members looking at a Title Policy, you don't do it every day, Mr. Donovan and I do. And the exceptions that are referred to therein are perfectly appropriate and I respectfully suggest do not mean what a layperson may think they mean that if you read them correctly they are exceptions that don't go to affirmative insurance, which is what we have here. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Are there any other questions or comments? Do I have a motion to close the Public Hearing? 

Ms. Drake: I so move to make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: Second? 

Mr. McKelvey: I'll second.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

James Manley: Recuse

(Time Noted – 8:40 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:01 PM)

FAJILATUN HUDA


172 BROOKSIDE FARMS ROAD, NBGH






(97-1-15) IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking a use variance for discontinuance of permitted use of 1-family residence in an IB zone to do interior alterations and repairs of house. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Fajilatun Huda, 172 Brookside Farms Road seeking a use variance for a discontinuance of permitted use of a 1-Family residence in IB Zone to do interior alterations and repairs of the house. This is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a Negative Declaration?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion for a Negative Dec.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Mr. Hughes: I have a discussion point here

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Hughes: Would that include the question we had about the septic systems serving the property? Or is that a Positive Declaration that there may be an impact because of that?

Mr. Donovan: Well we have his environmental assessment form that's been issued...that was submitted rather not issued but submitted. And the question would be based upon that information or any other information that you may have is there an indication that the existence of the septic system on the other property is causing a significant adverse environmental impact. That would be the threshold to issuing a Positive Declaration.

Mr. Hughes: It's on another property, that's the point. 

Mr. Donovan: Odd. It's not what you'd want.

Mr. Hughes: Common.

Mr. Donovan: But not unheard of.    

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Its not still allowed.

Mr. Donovan: Today it is not years ago. I mean if you're building a new subdivision you are not going to let it happen today.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Ms. Drake: I don't think it's an environmental impact. 

Mr. Hughes: But would it be grounds for Positive rather than Negative?

Mr. Donovan: Honestly Ron, I don't think so. I mean if it was non-functioning we would probably refer it the Building Department and they would either handle it or refer it to the Health Department, to the County Health Department to enforce the violation.

Ms. Drake: And at that point they have sufficient room on the property to relocate it in another location should it fail.

Ms. Gennarelli: Shall I finish the vote?

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: No

                                  James Manley: Recused

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I think everything was provided that we asked for or that the attorney asked for last month.

Chairperson Cardone: Right

Ms. Drake: And I feel the fact that the Title Insurance says they have access from Brookside Farms Road. It does indicate that they have access and that was our issue as to whether they had access or not and therefore met the requirements of a use variance.   

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval? 

Ms. Eaton: I'll make a motion for approval.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: No

                                  James Manley: Recuse

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

 (Time Noted – 10:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 8:40 PM) 


JOHN WARNER 


165 LATTINTOWN ROAD, NBGH

(CANDLESTICK PARK, LLC)  
(7-1-38.12) A/R ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for creating a new non-conformity with a larger home, the 40-foot minimum between homes and does not comply with Section 185-23-B-12 to replace a 24' x 54' home with a 27' x 56' home.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant John Warner, Candlestick Park, LLC. Before we begin if I could just read the County report:

Based on our review of the materials submitted regarding the above referenced site plan in accordance with Section 239, paragraphs l and m of the General Municipal Law, we do not have any significant intercommunity or countywide considerations to bring to your attention.   

Mr. Warner: I am John Warner owner of Candlestick Park. This is a carryover from last month. 

Mr. Donovan: I know that last month we did not have Code Compliance here so I had some questions about the history of this application and how it got to where it is so I want to thank Betty (Gennarelli) for spending a lot of time and effort to at least to bring me up to date and educate me on the history of the application since I had a lot a questions about the lines 185-23 that have pretty much now all been answered.

Ms. Gennarelli: You're welcome.

Chairperson Cardone: Did anyone else have any further questions on this? 

Mr. Donovan: To make sure that I'm clear though, Betty has provided a map that I think goes back from the '06 approval that this Board gave and do I understand correctly that and has the rest of the Board, have you seen this map before that shows…came in with a series of variances…

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: …request for a series of variances and all the mobile home units? You must have known Lester Clark then? Right? He owned a number of mobile homes. 

Mr. Warner: Pardon me?

Mr. Donovan: Never mind, he is an old client of mine. And the ones that are highlighted in yellow I'm going to presume are the ones that you've applied and received your variances for before. There are also a number of other parcels here one of which is the subject, Lot #71, of tonight's application that you didn't apply for a variance before.

Mr. Warner: That's correct.

Mr. Donovan: I think one of the questions that the Board Members have raised is…are you going to go back for those? I think that was…

Chairperson Cardone: That was a question that was raised.

Mr. Warner: I would have to say that's certainly possible when we presented this two years ago it was not presented as the final answer for everything to the end of time. We picked out the obvious ones that clearly needed relief. I made the mistake of not including #71 because I misread the length of that home as 56 feet and that was the size of home that we intended to put in there. So there is only one dimension that we are seeking relief on and that is this particular site I think has what you would consider three front yards. Am I right? It faces a road on three sides. And so in the direction of what I call north on your map we're looking for a two-foot relief so that we can put in the 56-foot length long home in place of the 54-foot home that was there before. We prefer not to go to the south to the neighboring home. It's the only neighboring home that's next to it. It's an uphill and it would require digging into a hillside and a retaining wall and so forth so we prefer to go to the north. 

Mr. Donovan: Does anyone want to take a look at this (the map)?

Chairperson Cardone: I think we've all seen it.

Mr. McKelvey: We've all seen it.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public?  

Ms. Drake: I make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.    

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 8:43 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:04 PM)

JOHN WARNER 


165 LATTINTOWN ROAD, NBGH

(CANDLESTICK PARK, LLC)  
(7-1-38.12) A/R ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for creating a new non-conformity with a larger home, the 40-foot minimum between homes and does not comply with Section 185-23-B-12 to replace a 24' x 54' home with a 27' x 56' home.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of John Warner, Candlestick Park, LLC. seeking area variances for creating a new non-conformity with a larger home. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I feel he described why it wasn't included in the blanket variance and addressed all our issues for this single parcel.

Mr. Manley: The removal of the old home is an improvement over the…its definitely an improvement and unfortunately there is no way he can go to the back based on the property. I don't see any real major issues.

Ms. Eaton: I believe he mentioned there is enough parking.     

Chairperson Cardone: Is there a motion for approval? 

Ms. Drake: I'll make a motion to approve the application.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Recused

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY

DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:05 PM)

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008              (Time Noted – 8:43 PM) 


NORTHEAST REALTY HOLDINGS, LLC
            CORPORATE BLVD & RTE 17K







(95-1-69.24 changed to 95-1-76) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variance for more than the allowed 25% of the rooms to include kitchens to construct a 140-room hotel with a kitchen in each room.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Northeast Realty Holdings.

Mr. Cleary: Good evening, my name is Mike Cleary, one of the principal owners of the property over at the Northeast Industrial Park for the hotel site. Again we are seeking relief to incorporate kitchens in all the guest rooms to facilitate a franchise for an extended stay hotel. There was some other ancillary information that we submitted as far as some information on the extended stays...

Ms. Drake: One of the things we had asked for…I'm sorry to interrupt you…was that showed each of the rooms had one-bedroom or one-bathroom and I believe that's what you submitted also.

Mr. Cleary: Yeah. These plans were solely submitted as illustrations for kitchens.

Ms. Drake: Right.

Mr. Cleary: Period. They have nothing to do with bedrooms. We are building right now approved hotel site and we're asking to increase from 25% of the rooms having a kitchen to 100% of the rooms because we lost our original flag. 

Ms. Drake: Yes. We just wanted to make sure we have the correct drawings for what you are trying…

Mr. Cleary: Correct. There will be no two baths in any of the baths in this hotel.

Mr. Manley: The kitchens will have sinks and then in order for the individuals to be able to wash the dishes after they have prepared a meal?

Mr. Cleary: Yes, sir.

Mr. Manley: Will there also be dishwashers in there?

Mr. Cleary: Um, generally there isn't. Generally there isn't, but again I don't know. I mean generally there isn't in an extended stay hotel. There's just not enough dishes to…

Ms. Eaton: There will be no two-bedroom units?

Mr. Cleary: Will there be any two-bedroom units? Not at this time but again that's, I mean, there's plenty of hotels…there's hotels in Newburgh that have two-bedrooms. Bedrooms are not prohibited in the Code as far as the amount of rooms…

Ms. Eaton: There's usually in extended stay hotels?

Mr. Cleary: No, the extended stay hotel is generally a pocketed room that has a kitchen. It's literally 400 to 500 sq. ft., all right, sometimes they'll have the one and the two-bedroom suites but we would not ever offer a two-bedroom without the second bath. So if we can't do the second bath I can pretty much say we are not going to do a two-bedroom. 

Mr. Manley: Now currently your letter that was sent by Fuss & O'Neil…

Mr. Cleary: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Indicated that for clarification purposes, there are no two-bedroom units or two bath units proposed for the project. So you're indicating that that might be a possibility…?

Mr. Cleary: No, I'm saying to right now that everything we're proposing to the project will be conforming to the current Zoning and Building Codes for the Town of Newburgh. We're just asking for extra kitchens. As far as the…if we go back before the Town to submit for a two-bedrooms and two baths we'd have to be back before you, we have to go back before the Planning Board. At this time right now, there is no, no…we have no intention of putting two bedrooms or two…we will not put two baths in there. I can tell you that. I assure you of that. 

Ms. Eaton: Will there be a central kitchen?

Mr. Cleary: Generally not, there would be a continental area, you know, a continental breakfast area.

Ms. Eaton: Where you would bring most of the food in? It would not be prepared there?

Mr. Cleary: Continental, no different than Hampton Inn, pastries, toast, deviled egg or hardboiled egg, cereals, sometimes a toaster or a waffle thing but there is no cooking. No.

Even though we are approved for a restaurant on site right now but that was with the Holiday Inn flag. This…most extended stays such as the Homewood on the airport does not have a kitchen.

Chairperson Cardone: If the Board were to grant that would you have a problem with a condition being added that there would not be any two-bedroom units?

Mr. Cleary: I would make that commitment.

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? 

Mr. Hughes: I'd just like to represent some figures I may have misspoke at a previous meeting. You are looking for 300% overage.  

Mr. Cleary: A 300% overage?

Mr. Hughes: 25% of them are allowable, you are looking for 100%. Every 25% is another 100% more than what you are allowed.  

Mr. Cleary: Well taking my accounting class I'd say I'm asking for 75% more but yes we're saying the same thing. We're asking for the ability to change to a franchise because of the lawsuits that were filed against us, which by the way, have been totally…they were not…they tried taking them to the New York State Appeals Court which was denied. So that lawsuit is moot now and basically has been I guess discharged or whatever term you want to use. But we are now looking to do another flag and that flag requirement is 100% of the rooms to be kitchens.

Mr. Hughes: So now that we've got our accounting differences over can we get back to a little definition? Would you say that substantial is substantial? Or…?

Mr. Cleary: Not at all. Not at all.

Mr. Hughes: No, huh?

Mr. Cleary: Not at all.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I have nothing else.

Mr. Cleary: Because right now we could have a kitchen sink, we could have a dishwasher, we could have a microwave, we could have a refrigerator. We're asking for the cook top, which is a little four-burner cook top that is really the defining element that would differentiate between a normal limited service…a select service to an extended stay is the ability to do that. There was concerns about apartments and I've got a copy of the letter from the attorney here on...it's so far fetched I don't even know how to say how we could ever convert these to apartments. They are roughly 400 sq. ft., 500 sq. ft. If we rented them monthly they'd be about $4000 a month. The air and ventilation requirements for these rooms which a hotel room can be mechanically ventilated but an apartment cannot. I can go down a list of about one hundred items we'd have to be back before you, with the Building Department and the Planning Board to convert this place to an apartment house.

Mr. Manley: I have a question for our Fire Inspector/Code Compliance Mr. Canfield…

Mr. Canfield: Any more titles?

Mr. Manley: I don't know. They change frequently, right?

Mr. Donovan: With no extra stipend?

Mr. Manley: With the addition of the…when you have kitchens inside of a hotel room what specifically, are there any additional requirements, fire suppression-wise if they are going to have that versus if they didn't have it? And, if so if you are going to have it in all of the rooms do they have to add it to the additional rooms? I'm assuming it would be sprinklered.

Mr. Canfield: Yes. O.K. 185-27 of our Zoning Code dealing with hotels, motels supplementary regulations call for sprinkler systems to be included in these type facilities…excuse me…regardless whether they do or do not have kitchens. In this case, this building will be fully sprinklered. Actually for three purposes, #1 the Zoning Code calls for it, our Town of Newburgh Local Code which is more stringent than the New York State Building Code when it comes to sprinkler systems and the Building Code itself will require sprinkler systems so there will be a suppression system and an alarm system in this building. They are all requirements. 

Mr. Cleary: A…suppression? 

Mr. Canfield: But again they are required whether there are or not kitchens.

Mr. Cleary: Did you say suppression system?

Mr. Canfield: That's a sprinkler system.

Mr. Cleary: I'm sorry?

Mr. Canfield: That's a sprinkler system. A sprinkler system is a suppression.

Mr. Cleary: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: And an alarm system.

Mr. Manley: Is it safe to say and you may not be in a position to answer this that a likelihood or the exposure is greater for an incident or a fire based on the fact that you are increasing the number of units with kitchens versus if you didn't have as many with kitchens?

Mr. Canfield: That's a very good assumption. There's been many years leading with fire statistics that the leading cause of fires have been cooking…cooking related instances. So anytime you introduce an increased number of kitchens to a building, yes you could say that could increase the number of incidence possibility.

Mr. Manley: Is that possibly why the Town when they went ahead and developed a Code to limit the number of kitchens in a hotel or motel to 25%, is that possibly why they maybe put that into the Code?

Mr. Canfield: I don't feel that I could answer that, Jim, not accurately. From a fire perspective, yes I feel comfortable with that; yes your assumption is correct, 100% correct. As you add the number of kitchens yes you are going to increase the possibility of increased fire incidents in the building. The intent of that 25% though when it was enacted, which I believe was in 1998, I'm not certain if they took that into consideration. I would like to think they did.

Mr. Manley: And that Section was just recently changed in '98? That's when it was enacted, yes? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes. According to our Zoning Code amended 9/23/98, Local Law #10, 1998.

Mr. Manley: So, the Town, at the time looked at it ten years ago.

Mr. Canfield: That's correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K. thank you.

Ms. Eaton: How many stories is the building?

Mr. Cleary: Three-stories.

Ms. Eaton: Does the Town of Newburgh have fire apparatus for three-stories?

Mr. Hughes: Up to thirty-five feet.

Mr. Cleary: The previous approval would have been four-stories which would have been the Holiday Inn. We decreased the size, the rooms, the height, the footprint, the parking, removed the restaurant and removed the banquet facility. I mean removing the restaurant would be so much more of a fire hazard in my eyes with grease traps, grease firelighters, griddles, convection ovens…

Mr. Manley: Well they have ancil systems so there's other precautions that are taken…

Mr. Cleary: Correct, and that's why there's sprinklers.

Mr. Manley: You are not going to have ancil systems in every single room?

Mr. Cleary: No but you are going to be fully sprinkled and we are talking about a four-burner electric burner top, no gas. No gas appliances.

Mr. Manley: Well the ABC, versus water in grease fire…there's differences.

Mr. Cleary: I am fully cognizant of that but what we're really talking about folks is an industry that has been flourishing since 1995, 1996. It's been around since the mid '80s, late '80's. There's a Homewood Suites sitting fifteen hundred yards on the airport from this property. It's an identical project of room type, not height, not whatever. Identical. There is about four of them in Fishkill. There's probably about three thousand of them in the nation. I can…when I got our friends letter there I went and looked up the case law she was referring to and basically there's three or four states that have adopted laws including extended stay into their language as a hotel unit. One of the premier items as to distinguishing whether it's an apartment or it’s a hotel is mail. It's like the old Santa Claus thing, you know if you have a residence…the burden is upon the resident doesn't have to…the case law that I submitted to you basically states that, you know, because a woman stayed in a place for two months and she was allowed to stay there and was constructively evicted when she wasn't supposed to be but the whole…if you read the rest of the case law that I happened to print off you'll out that was because she didn't have another dwelling, she didn't have another place to live and she was using that as her primary residence. This is a business that is Residence Inn. I submitted probably over twenty-five brands that are exclusive to just extended stay. I don't know what else I can say. I'm not going to disagree with your analogy or Mr. Canfield's. You could put more electrical cooking units in obviously statistically you would but I tell you right now I could probably tell you how many fires have been in hotels or an extended stay hotel and you know, I've never heard of one and I'm sure there have been. But they're not as predominate as one would think to have an equipment unit in a room. The Fire Safety Codes like the Town and I'm not sure of Newburgh's I'm just saying State Code we wouldn't have to sprinkler certain areas of the hotel. We wouldn't have to sprinkler our attic systems. These are all items that are mandated by the franchise. Fortune 500 companies will not allow their guest to stay in these type hotels without these certain safety elements whether it's Code or not.

Mr. Manley: Well fortunately the Town of Newburgh does require sprinklers. I mean…

Mr. Cleary: Well no…

Mr. Manley: …Las Vegas Nevada is a perfect example of it, you know, when the MGM Grand caught fire there was significant loss of life without sprinklers. So fortunately…

Mr. Cleary: I did not say without sprinklers. There is a mandate for sprinklers but we actually will sprinkle in-between floor joists, in the attic area, in different areas it's 13 R.

Mr. Canfield: What you're talking about is the requirements of a 13 R…

Mr. Cleary: Right.

Mr. Canfield: …residential system.

Mr. Cleary: Right.

Mr. Canfield: …but I can't comment on that. (Inaudible)

Mr. Cleary: No, I'm not saying that I'm just saying that it's not only the Code but the franchises themselves dictate a high level of precautionary safety features in the hotel because whether or not we're a franchisee or not they still end up getting sued.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anything else from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes, please state your name.

Ms. Berson: Good evening, Marilyn Berson, I'm with Teahan & Constantino, just a few comments. The applicant, this evening, acknowledged that there is not going to be any central cooking facility and I believe that in one of the earlier letters our firm sent to the Board we noted that without that central cooking facility we do not believe that this proposed building meets the definition of hotel under the Zoning Code. And since this is the first acknowledgement by the applicant that there will not be a central cooking facility I think that an issue that the Board needs to address. Secondly, we are talking about 140 kitchens next door to one of our clients one-family residential properties which I think is within one hundred feet of the hotel and I have yet to see or hear any discussion with respect to exhaust from 140 kitchens and the odors that are going to emanate and what impact they are going to have on the residential properties including my clients pre-existing one-family residential property within a short distance of the hotel. Finally, what extended stay hotels exist in other municipalities are really of no consequence here since they're under different Zoning Codes. We don't know what those Zoning Codes say. We don't know how many units in those hotels are units with kitchen facilities but what this has turned into and that's evident this evening, without any restaurant so there is no central kitchen facility. This is a multi-family apartment complex and nothing more and I would just ask that the Board look at that and review the information that we have submitted thus far which in our mind indicates that the proposed project does not meet the definition of hotel and you know, frankly the applicant can't in good faith say that this is not a substantial variance. This variance is resulting 100% of 140-rooms having their own kitchens as opposed to 25% that's permitted under the Code. So, I don't…you know, while substantiality is just one factor however you characterize it in terms of mathematical terms that's a very, that's the greatest variance that the applicant can be requesting. Thank you.

Mr. Cleary: The only thing I want to comment on is in your supplementary regulations if you look at D 3 B, it says one coffee shop for hotels and motels with no more than 100 rooms. Basically if you look at…in addition to a coffee shop, hotels, motels with more than 100 rooms are permitted a restaurant with bar facilities meaning an optional. The Super 8 does not have a kitchen in it. The Hampton Inn does not have a kitchen in it. These are limited service hotels. They have no central kitchen facility. The Hilton Garden does because it's a select service. This has a lobby; this has a guest check in. For her to say that this is a…an apartment complex I don't even know how to answer that. We've never submitted we've never used apartment complex. We've got an approval for a hotel. We're here looking for relief for a hotel. The rooms are too small for apartments. The Code wouldn't allow apartments and I'd have to go back for use changes as well as Planning Board and ZBA approval to convert them to apartments in the current zone. I'm being basically…we've got approvals to do something that is very clear. It's build a hotel. What we have here is somebody just coming up saying well they are going to do this; they are going to do that. I mean I could possibly make this a strip club in five years but you are going to say no as much as me having this as a apartment house and I'll tell now I can build a lot less…I can build an apartment house with that many rooms a lot less than I can build this hotel. I just…it's just I don't even know how to answer some of these claims other than the fact that we're building a hotel. We always have been for the last two and one half years and these people have tried to put…this is the same group that sued us in the Article 78 and this is just basically getting to be a vindictive item with whoever her clients are. We've suffered tremendously. I mean, we're seeking our own legal action right now but we've hurt tremendously based upon the process. The process sometimes can be used as a weapon instead of a sword. So…(tape machine beeped) is this where I shut up?

Ms. Gennarelli: No I have two going (tape recorders), thank you though.

Mr. Cleary: That's all I have to say. Thank you.       

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions or comments?     

Mr. Manley: I would just like to add that regardless of litigation which has nothing to do with what this Board is here to review, litigation has no impact on, you know, at least how I am going to decide.

Mr. Cleary: I would agree.

Mr. Manley: The case, the decision before the Board, which I'm considering, is the 25% versus 100%.

Mr. Cleary: Correct.

Mr. Manley: That is the issue at hand. That's the issue with the Code and you know that's what we're looking at. But the issues that are being brought up with regard with the size of the request is an issue that I have concern with. You know you are looking at, as Mr. Hughes said, a 300%…that's a huge, a huge request and there's certain reasons in my mind why the Town has put in place the 25% limit.

Mr. Cleary: I was told the Town put the 25% limit to prevent transient type apartment houses and flop houses.

Mr. Manley: And, I don't know that as a fact.

Mr. Cleary: No, I understand that. I understand that.

Mr. Manley: I know that in 1998 they made some changes to the Zoning Code for particular purpose and you know what this certainly again causes an extreme precedential case by granting 100%. You know if another similar entity were to come in and say 'hey, we want to do all kitchens as well' you know it kind of make it difficult to say yes to one and no to another and each circumstance is different but... 

Mr. Cleary: I understand what you are saying but on the other hand you're talking about Local Law that was developed in 1998 when the extended stay industry was new…relatively new. You're talking about a Local Law that totally prohibits an entire industries type rank. I don't even know how to…I hear what you're saying but on the other hand your cause and concerns about kitchens and I can assure you there will be no odors the windows are fixed. That's another item with the hotel the fixed window.

Mr. Manley: You haven't actually provided...at least I haven't gotten a copy of anything that shows statistically what are the difference…what are the differences between built regular hotels motels versus the extended stay…the percentages? I see nothing factual from the industry that indicates that out of all of the hotels and motels that are constructed, 30%, 40% are extended stay versus 60% are traditional. I haven't seen…

Mr. Cleary: I have submitted to you probably over twenty-five brands and I can just start with Marriott Residence Inn, Hilton Homewood Suites, Hawthorne Suites, Candlewood Suites, Staybridge Suites from the Holiday Inn…

Mr. Manley: I understand but nothing that I've seen has actually discussed…

Mr. Cleary: But I was never asked to provide any statistical demonstration of a percentage to regular guest rooms to statistical extended stays. What I provided was, I think, some just some Google searches that dated back in the mid…late '90's, 2000 and just to show a history to show extended stay is here. It's an industry. And then I provided you with about thirty-five different brands. There's billions of dollars worth of industry in the extended stay market and again, she's correct, the Town of Newburgh does not have to approve an extended stay. Fishkill can have it. This place can have it. We wouldn't even be here. We would be operating a Holiday Inn right now. We're in a position now where we don't have that opportunity anymore. We don't and we're really getting down to the nitty gritty on flags will work in Newburgh at this time on that property.

Mr. Manley: There are no other, you're saying there's no other extended stays that would do 75/25?

Mr. Cleary: There is no such thing as an extended stay…

Mr. Manley: There's no mixed? 

Mr. Cleary: Nope.

Mr. Manley: At all? 

Mr. Cleary: Nope.

Mr. Manley: And you have no other, you're saying that there is no other chains that would actually…

Mr. Cleary: There's a couple of chains that would go there but we would lose our shirt according to feasibility.

Ms. Eaton: Has this franchise been identified yet?  

Mr. Cleary: It's either going to be a Hyatt Staybridge Suites or a Hyatt Place but it will most likely be a Hyatt Staybridge Suites which is the room configuration you've been given. 

Chairperson Cardone: Anything else from the Board? 

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Cleary: Thank you for your time.                                    (Time Noted – 9:13 PM)

Chairperson Cardone: Before proceeding the Board will take a short adjournment to confer with counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight's applications. I'd like to ask you to step into the hallway for a couple of minutes and we'll call you back in shortly. 

ZBA MEETING – MAY 22, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:05 PM)

NORTHEAST REALTY HOLDINGS, LLC
            CORPORATE BLVD & RTE 17K







(95-1-69.24 changed to 95-1-76) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variance for more than the allowed 25% of the rooms to include kitchens to construct a 140-room hotel with a kitchen in each room.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Northeast Realty Holdings, Corporate Blvd & Route 17K seeking an area variance for more than the allowed 25% of the rooms to include kitchens to construct a 140-room hotel with a kitchen in each room. And the Planning Board is the lead agency. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Manley: The only thing, one of the first things that I look at is, with this applicant they didn't really submit, at least in my mind, anything that really showed whether or not they could have achieved the variance…without the variance…achieved putting something there without obtaining the variance. He (Mr. Cleary) indicated that he lost a franchise, really got nothing that some other company, some other hotel chain could have picked it up so that leaves in my mind the possibility that there is another option available without obtaining a variance. And the second thing I look at is the excessive nature of the variance. We're not looking at 30% or 40% we're looking at, you know, 300%, 100% of the units being occupied with kitchens.

Chairperson Cardone: It's also self-created.  

Mr. Manley: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: That was split off from another parcel originally; this is a double deal on this one.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other discussion? Do we have a motion for approval on this application? 

(No response)

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Mr. Manley: I'll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: No


                      Ruth Eaton: No

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: No

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Donovan: Was that four - three, Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: Four - three. Yes. Disapproval. 

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.
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Chairperson Cardone: On the application of WB Interchange Associates. (The Marketplace at Newburgh) this was a sign variance. The Planning Board is the lead agency. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: There was some discrepancies on the total square footages on the big box stores and I'm wondering if the lesser numbers are the real figures or the higher numbers or if it varies?

Chairperson Cardone: We have a question you could answer for us.

Mr. Bainlardi: Good evening, John Bainlardi for the applicant. Could you be more specific? 

Mr. Hughes: I think Mr. Manley has some figures written down. He may be able to help you better.

Mr. Manley: There's just a little confusion and maybe it has to do with because there's been so many numbers, John, that…if you have the 4-17-08 signage schedule. I don't know if…

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: You have that. You were nice enough to e-mail the signs for the big box stores, which I have a copy of. Now if you look at the JC Penney building, the north elevation says the sign area and I'm reading 220 sq. ft. on the thing I have here but yet on the Building "A" on the signage schedule it says 296 and 340.

Mr. Bainlardi: The…what is on the signage schedule is what is allocated for that particular building. JC Penney's signage package is less that what we've allocated for the particular building. What we've tried to do is keep consistency throughout the center based solely upon the frontage that the particular building has as allocated on the signage schedule. So if JC Penney were not to be the tenant and another tenant had a higher signage package that that tenant would be able to use the additional square footage that's allocated to the building. 

Mr. Manley: Now JC Penney is occupying all of Building "A"?

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: So your answers of what you're allowed to have are generic and you are leaving a little bit of fluctuation in there in case you get a different tenant? Is that what you're telling us?

Mr. Bainlardi: Well yes. Right. What I'm telling you…exactly.

Mr. Hughes: So you go by the lesser numbers of what you have in plan now and the bigger numbers is what you're actually allotted?

Mr. Bainlardi: What each building…

Mr. Donovan: Yes.

Mr. Bainlardi: …particular building would be allocated what they would be allotted, yes, is in the signage schedule.

Mr. Hughes: I'm with it now. Thank you. 

Mr. Manley: That's were the…I kept going back and forth and I'm not…

Mr. Hughes: They have actual figures and then every once and a while a big box store has different figures.  

Mr. Bainlardi: Right, when we were before the Planning Board it was requested that we present the particular tenants that we did have…were at liberty to disclose and provide information about. We used their actual signage packages. The one exception there would be Best Buy where they had a considerably higher request and ultimately ended up with a smaller number.

Mr. Manley: Now if I could go back to our counsel and just ask? For the places that don't have occupants which would be "B", "C" and "D" because we don't know who is going to occupy it and what their actual need for square footage is going to be is there anyway to actually approve it conditionally until the occupant is chosen and then for administrative purposes have the applicant come back to give us the sign numbers, the actual numbers?

I'm just wondering.

Chairperson Cardone: But why not just say can't exceed the amount that's listed there?

Ms. Drake: And that would be up to the Building Department to insure that when the application comes through for the sign.

Mr. Bainlardi: That's what's intended in the way that the signage schedule is prepared. Again, it's an allocation of a maximum with specific guidelines on the type of signage and the maximum sign that any particular sign can be on a façade. So…

Mr. Donovan: Jim, are you suggesting that…they came back with a lesser number then we would modify our approval?

Mr. Manley: Approve the amount that they are coming before us with. To insure that it's…well I guess it could work either way. The only other issue is, I guess, in whatever approval we make we're going to have to condition it that the amount is the total amount for the building and that…

Mr. Donovan: And there is no trade, either.

Mr. Manley: Right, I would say that you would have to approve each one individually. Like Building "A" gets "X" amount of square feet…"B"…"C"…

Mr. Donovan: Well if the Board is inclined to approve the variance request, you know, my thought would be that this signage schedule from 4-17-08 is the approval.

Chairperson Cardone: It becomes a part of the document.

Mr. Donovan: So then for the monument signage, the way finding signage, the building center, the big box that's what's allocated for each of the buildings.

Mr. McKelvey: They can't exceed it.

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct. 

Mr. Donovan: Does that work for the Building, Code Compliance Fire Inspector, Building Department whatever else…

Mr. Canfield: Sleepy. Typically what's happened with these signage plans, at the Planning Board level they've requested the applicants to submit a cohesive signage plan, which dovetails with ARB (architectural review board), so at that point and we use very much so the Planning Board consultant Karen Arent who is very much involved with ARB and signage. We've also developed a procedure or protocol if you will per say that on these signage plans that they are checked and rechecked by Karen's office for compliance with what the applicable Boards has approved. Whether it be the Zoning Board or the Planning Board. Excuse me. I don't know if that answers your question but it will work for the Building Department we have that comfort level of a checks and balances with a pipeline directly to the ARB for compliance with what was approved and that's twofold helpful to us because it takes the largest burden off our back basically and it gives us another checkpoint to double check to make sure that the applicant is doing what's been approved if that answer your question.

Mr. Manley: There was just one other thing and that was in the Planning Board you had discussed signage not facing the rear of the buildings. Now with the gasoline station it appears that there's four sides so it would be facing the rear. I'm a little…that's one thing I picked up. 

Mr. Bainlardi: We'd have no problem making it a condition or indicating that no signage would be placed on the rear of that building facility facing the north or the residential neighborhood. And just going back to the prior point we had also suggested some word...verbiage for the…as a condition that unused signage square footage that's allocated to one store may not be used for any other store and there is no trading. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other discussion from the Board? Do I have a motion for approval on this application? 

Mr. Maher: I make a motion we approve. 

Ms. Drake: Second.

Mr. McKelvey: I'd like that to include that no sign on the back end of Costco.

Mr. Donovan: Correct and also no trading will sound more legal in the decision than no trading but when we all know what that means.

Mr. Hughes: All of the conditions that have been set.

Mr. Donovan: All of the conditions that have, correct.

Mr. Hughes: Have you ever been beat up this bad in any other municipalities?

Mr. Bainlardi: You did a very good job, sir.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.  

Mr. Manley: So I guess the motion then is to accept what we have here less the Costco sign facing the north side? Is that the understanding?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: And no trade-offs. 

Mr. Manley: And no trading.

Mr. Bainlardi: If we could also just add so its clear that the signage schedule is what's being approved that includes the freestanding signs because there is a variance for freestanding signs here.

Mr. Hughes: My understanding that what we've processed up to this point includes all of the signage.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes, sir.

Mr. Hughes: As long as we're clear on that.

Mr. Donovan: Right but there is a limit on the number of freestanding signs that we're exceeding so that's included in the total square footage but its also more than the freestanding signs that are ordinarily allowed but within that 10,706 sq. ft.

Chairperson Cardone: Right

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: We had a motion, correct?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. We had a motion and a second.

Mr. McKelvey: We had a second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is approved.

Mr. Bainlardi: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: You're welcome.
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(BUILDING BLOCKS DAY CARE CTR)
(51-10-11.1) IB ZONE

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Gaba was here last month requesting a rehearing for Vincent and Maria Marino, Building Blocks Day Care Center and I believe you have something further to tell us. 

Mr. Gaba: Good evening, I'm Steven Gaba; I represent the applicant Building Blocks. We were here last month on a request for a rehearing and we provided quite a bit of information to the Board at that time and it was decided to hold the matter over to give you time to review it and digest it and we're now we're back to answer any questions that you may have, to tie up a few loose ends that we perceive and well to summarize our position as to why a rehearing should be granted.

Mr. Hughes: I have one question. Did you read the materials that I pointed out that I requested everybody be aware of?

Mr. Gaba: And which materials were those?

Mr. Hughes: What we discussed the last time you were here.

Mr. Gaba:  Which materials were you referring to?

Mr. Hughes: All of the descriptives, narratives that went on through all of the Board meetings that got us to this point here tonight. 

Mr. Gaba: I reviewed the 2007, February 2007 minutes of the ZBA if that's what you're referring to. 

Mr. Hughes: My question was, did you review all of the material that I asked you to read?

Mr. Gaba: To the best of my knowledge, Mr. Hughes, I did.

Mr. Hughes: Well then do you remember telling me that there was no chicanery involved with this matter and that you went to the Planning Board? Do you recall that conversation? 

Mr. Gaba: There was and is no chicanery involved in this matter and we did in fact go to the Planning Board.

Mr. Hughes: May I? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Are you familiar with this document, Mr. Gaba?

Mr. Gaba: Well, let me see what it is. Amended site plan, Steven Gaba, this is a work session, March of '08 and this is the minutes of the Planning Board meeting from March of '08. Yes.

Mr. Hughes: I wasn't at that meeting but you were so you should be familiar with what took place there right? 

Mr. Gaba: I sure am.

Mr. Hughes: May I have that back please? Are you willing to tell me again that there was no chicanery and that it was just a matter of clean business that you tried to take care of for your applicant?

Mr. Gaba: I like to think I always try to take care of clean business for my applicant. So what's your point?

Mr. Hughes: Well that will come out later.

Mr. Gaba: I'll wait with baited breath.

Mr. Hughes: I'm sure you will.

Mr. Gaba: I will. This just to reorient the Board is the site plan for Building Blocks and just generally what we're proposing is to take the fourth year students from the main building and put them into this accessory building over here which will now become part of the main use. The purpose of this is to renovate the interior, it'll make more room for the classes that are in there, we may wind up altogether in the aggregate with ten more students as a result of this. But on the whole the purpose of this is is an upgrade to the Building Blocks site. Now, when we were here last time I went over the facts regarding how we got here and I explained to the Board and I provided you with law on the point that when a use variance is granted its tantamount to a Zoning change, the use extends to the entire property and you can expand the structures in which the use is housed as of right. And…

Mr. Hughes: Excuse me. Counsel, do we have an open hearing here? 

Mr. Donovan: Do we have an open hearing? No. We have a request.

Mr. Hughes: Do we not need to vote to open a hearing to hear any further what this…?

Mr. Donovan: The request before the Board is to rehear the application that was heretofore denied. So, however, it's up to the Chair, the Board if they want to…Mr. Gaba had asked before if he could come make a presentation.

Mr. Hughes: We're in the middle of a presentation here and I don't recall anybody reopening the hearing.

Mr. Gaba: It's not a Public Hearing.

Chairperson Cardone: This is not a Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: But…

Mr. Hughes: Now that we've established all of that, do we need to open this to hear him any further? 

Mr. Donovan: That's within the discretion of the Board.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: His request, we heard from Mr. Gaba last month, he is here to present more information, if the Board wants to hear it they are certainly entitled to hear it. If the Board doesn't want to hear it, if you feel like you have enough information to rule on the request or act on the request that's been made, that's fine as well. 

Mr. Hughes: Well I've read all the homework that everyone that is involved with this thing is supposed to read and if everyone else read what I read then there would be an understanding why I have my nose a little bit out of joint. 

Chairperson Cardone: I do understand what you are saying, Mr. Hughes, but I feel that I would like to hear if Mr. Gaba has anything further to tell us.

Mr. Hughes: Do you have any new information that you would like to bring to us?

Mr. Gaba: Um, I would like to answer what I perceive to be the Board's questions last time and I would like to summarize our position. I don't know if you consider that new or not but it certainly, I think, would be a clarification of our position last time.

Mr. Manley: I think that, you know, Mr. Gaba should be given the opportunity to at least present and answer the questions that the Board had. In addition to that I think that there some Members that were not here last month that may benefit from hearing what Mr. Gaba has to present. That's just my feeling on that.

Chairperson Cardone: I agree with you.

Mr. McKelvey: I agree.

Ms. Eaton: I wasn't here and I agree with you Mr. Manley.

Mr. Maher: I'd be willing to listen.   

Mr. Gaba: Thank you. May I continue?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.    

Mr. Gaba: O.K. Um, so last time I presented a fair amount of historical background and we went through chronologically what happened. There was apparently a little mishap with the presentation of the application. I handed up a application dated May. And in fact, what that was was a second submission by the applicant. But the original was in February and I believe the Board has that before it and what happened was after the denial the applicant tried to come back to the Board submitted a typewritten copy and it contains essentially the same information as the first application. It's just its dated May as opposed to being dated February. Anyway when I submitted the information one of the questions that I perceived anyway that I got from the Board was…we already ruled on this…are you saying to us Mr. Gaba that we didn't rule on one of the issues on this…are you saying that there was something left out and that's why you're coming back to us? And I was tried to explain and perhaps I wasn't as clear as I might have been the answer to that is no. The problem is that you did rule on these very claims before. It's when the Board rules on the claims that you need a rehearing. If the Board doesn't rule on a particular application then you're free to resubmit, to go back to the Building Department, get a denial and come back. But the problem here is you did rule on the interpretation, you did rule on the use variance and yes, these are the very same issues that you considered before but it's for that reason that we need to have a rehearing. We submit there's information that was overlooked, not submitted or submitted incorrectly when you ruled on these very same issues before and we believe that if you consider it now at a rehearing you may, not necessarily will, but may come down differently. So, just to make sure that there's no doubt before its mind we're not standing before you saying hey wait a minute there was issues we wanted to submit we request for relief that we didn't last time, you didn't rule on them and we're coming in anew. No, that's not the case. The case is you did rule on this but it's because you did that we need the rehearing. The next issue that I perceived the Board had was...wait a minute, on the original application Building Blocks came in and they said the day care facility would be only in the main building and not in the garage…how can you now come in and say, we're going to put the main use in the garage? Well the reason for that is very simply that when you get a use variance it extends, as I pointed out before, to the entire property. It would be the same for any other property that came in with a use variance and then wanted to expand its buildings and I don't think I need to point any further than your recent decision Patti Cake Playhouse. What happens is somebody comes into the Board and says I want a use variance. They don't come in in a vacuum and not tell you what it is they plan to build. They come in and they say it’s a 2500 sq. ft. building and oh yeah, there's a garage over here and a playground or a driveway over there, fencing over here and the like. And if things work out you get big experience. Time goes by, they want to expand. Well of course the expansion isn’t something that is mentioned in the original plans. Nobody come in and says I want a use variance; here is what I’m going to build by the way seven years from now I am going to put an addition on the building. That just never happens. Every time you grant a use variance and then there's the desire to expand the building latter on it’s going to be something that wasn’t proposed in the initial application. That’s exactly the case here. You have the main building, which was proposed to be used for a housing of the students in the day care center, and you have the accessory garage, which was proposed at the time to be used as an accessory building. Now last time I was here, John said wait a minute you’re changing the use, you’re changing the use of the garage, the garage was a garage then the garage was office space with storage and now the garage is going to be part of the main use. And you know what? Johns right we are changing the use but we’re changing it to an allowed use because we have a use variance. This is an accessory building but the use of the property is a daycare center. It’s an accessory garage to a daycare center. We are changing that and as a result of changing use we have to go to the Planning Board and get site plan approval. But in changing of the use, it doesn’t mean that we’re changing the use of the property just the use of this accessory building its now housing the main use and that’s why we needed site plan approval but we don’t need a use variance and we don’t need an expansion of the variance we had. Pretend that the building had never been there to begin with…how is putting a class in this building any different than putting this as an addition onto the main building, the physical separation? That doesn’t change the use, that's nothing, that’s just some beams attached to it. Accessory to main use yes, change in use requires site plan approval. It doesn't require an expansion to the use variance that was granted. The use is the same it’s a daycare center. Accessory building to main building yes but accessory building to daycare center to main daycare center use. So I hope that cleared that up. Why should you grant a rehearing? Why? Why ever grant a rehearing? Well the best thing I can do I think in regard to helping you make up your minds on that is point you to the source of where your power to grant rehearings comes from. Town law 267 A. What does Town law 267A say? Not a heck of a lot. It says that the Board can grant a rehearing and that it requires a unanimous vote of all the Board Members present to do it. Doesn't state the grounds. Doesn't set forth any criteria. It's not like the sections that give you the power to grant variances. Now the courts interpreting this section have given you some guidance and some milestones to help you. The first thing they said as far as the standard of review is that it's discretionary. Is that going to be an occasion when you grant a rehearing and somebody steps in and says wait a minute there's no grounds for them to grant a rehearing on that. It's up to you. You shouldn't have to move heaven and earth to get a rehearing. The point is to get it right. The point is to have transparency in the system. The point is to protect the integrity of Zoning Board decisions by making sure that you have all the facts before you. Granting rehearing isn't the same thing as admitting that your prior decision was wrong. Granting a rehearing does nothing more than give the applicant to have another look at their application. You're absolutely free to decide it exactly the same way. All it does is make sure that the Board has every opportunity to serve the people in this Town by taking all the facts into consideration when it makes its decision. The court cases say and I believe I handed up the write up on this that new facts are helpful. If an applicant comes in and can demonstrate to you that they have something new to show you, something different, perhaps another angle they'd like you to consider on their application, that's the kind of thing that should sway you to grant, to use your discretion to grant the application. Are new facts absolutely necessary? No, they are not. If you think that it's just a proper occasion to give the person 15, 20 more minutes of time at another Public Hearing you're free to do that but new facts are the kind of thing because, you know, just because you have discretion doesn't mean you should act arbitrarily. Grounds exist? You should use your discretion to grant the hearing. New facts are one more thing. Inaccurate facts on the prior application, if the applicant can come into you and show that the first time around you based your decision on facts or law or perceptions that were wrong or at least may have been wrong, grounds exist to grant a rehearing. You should take another look at it; make sure you got it right. It's not that great a burden on the Town's facilities and it can mean a great deal to people only in this Town. The bottom line, the bottom line on these applications is equity and fairness. Well if you have an ax grind and you don't like somebody it's not right to take it out you know and deny a rehearing based on that. Give them another look, if you rule the same so be it you rule the same way but fairness that's what its about. Now how does this apply to our case? The Building Blocks case, what's new here, what was wrong the first time? Well one of the things that we can add this time around is additional background information and I laid out for you last the genesis of how it is Building Blocks came to be before this Board. I explained how it is they'd come and got the variance from you, how it is they changed the shed from a…or the garage from a shed into office space and storage space, upgraded the building. And I think that type of information will just give you more of a perspective on what it is they are trying to do here and what the a…what the scope of the variance the first time around was. We pointed out to you the July 14 letter from the Fire Inspector opining that a variance was needed. It's our position that letter was just wrong. They didn't need a variance at all. I've explained to you our position regarding use variances. The letter has never been considered by this Board and I think that you'd have to speak to that issue in order to give a full and fair determinating interpretation of the variance and that's explains a lot as far as the errors, what we feel are errors that brought us to the position that we're in now and it was an error that we didn't make or at least we contend its an error that we didn't, it was on the part of the Town. An explanation and clarification of the referral from the Planning Board, when you read the referral letter from Mike Donnelly the first time around, it says that he wants the Board the Planning Board wants this Board to determine whether the proposed use is within the contours of the existing variance. What does that mean? Well, Mike in March wrote another letter explaining what it is he means and what he said was...the Planning Board thought perhaps because they were asking for a classroom use that it was different than the daycare use for which the variance had been granted. Obviously in March, Mike's March of '08 letter was not before the Board when it ruled the first time and I think that the clarification of what the referral was in the first place was the kind of thing that might sway this Board or at least has a possibility of swaying this Board when it looks at the interpretation that's being asked of it on second time around. Well in the full and accurate explanation of law I think if you're honest with yourselves about it and I know quite a few of you weren't here the first time all this information about use variances and legal import of use variances is something that wasn't before you in 2007 when you considered this application the first time. It came in in February, the Public Hearing was in February, your ruling was in February. I don't know that a lot of thought went to exactly what the underpinning, the legal underpinning for the interpretation you were being requested that was requested of you. I don't think a lot was given and I think now you have an opportunity with the law before you to give deeper thought as to the proper interpretation is here. The ZBA decision of Patty Cake Playhouse that came after your decision last. It's your own decision and I think that its right on point with what we're talking about here. That decision I don't know how precedential it is as far goes I think it really embodies what's always been the policy of the Town of Newburgh but still it’s a nice clear statement of it, the facts are on all fours with this application here and I think in the interest of equal protection you would want to treat one applicant much like you treat another, that's another consideration its something new and I think it provides one more reason to grant a rehearing.  The 239 m referral to the County Planning Department, as you know the property is located on South Plank Road, Route 52, a State Highway the request last time included a request for a use variance under General Municipal Law m, when you have a request for a use variance for a property located within 500 feet of a State Highway there must, must be a referral to the County Planning Department. There was no referral to the County Planning Department. Had the County Planning Department have an opportunity to comment on this and David Church who is the head of County Planning almost always has something to say and its usually quite informative. I think it would have given the Board certainly additional facts and law to think about and that report, a mandatory report was not before you last time. This time it will be. That's new evidence, and it could be important new evidence and it’s the kind of thing that I think certainly would support grant of a new rehearing on this. A corrected statement of the application one other thing I would like to point out to you on that, this is the minutes for the 2007 meeting almost the first things that were said to you about this other than your opportunity to review the papers, stood up and said the Planning Board and its attorneys took the position that it was unclear whether the 1996 variance included all the property. I think it being the insinuation that somehow the variance did not apply to that garage and that garage continued to be subject to B zoning. That's wrong. Flat out, undeniably wrong. The Planning Board took no such position; the Planning Board did not refer this to you for that purpose. Is it our fault that you got wrong infor…? Yep, it's our fault but the fact of the matter is we had some help along the way by being told that we needed variances and that information before you is wrong. The issue was framed incorrectly. Its one more thing, one more factor that I think would support a grant of a rehearing here. A written resolution of the Zoning Board, its common facts by the Zoning Board to have written resolutions which set forth the circumstances and findings and I think that those resolutions really help pull together how it is how the Zoning Board feels on a particular matter, what the rational for the decision is. It helps you decide as much as it tells the applicant what your decision is. There was no decision last time, it never got written, it never got disseminated. This time around you'll have your attorney here, you're able to present draft resolution for you crystallizing issues and helping you pass on them. Lastly, all right I've heard Gaba drown on about this I'm not convinced, I'm not convinced I think we got it right the last time, I don't think we should put kids in that shed. Well, O.K. that's O. K. because you're not being asked now to decide whether you agree with us as to what the contours of the variance were as to whether we can do this or not. The only issue before you tonight is a very narrow issue. Are you going to exercise your discretion under Town Law 267 A to give us a rehearing? Balance it out, as far as what the benefit would be to the applicant it means everything, for the neighbors who came in last time and stood up complained about this that they shouldn't do it? I don't think so. The use we're talking about isn't a fat rendering plant it’s daycare. What's the burden to the Town, we're asking twenty minutes, fifteen, twenty minutes of your time next month, give us another hearing. If you disagree, you disagree but you don't have to tonight say, I'm not going to grant a rehearing because I don't think I am going to change my mind. The issue isn't whether you are going to change your mind, the issue is whether we've shown you that maybe, just maybe this time we're going to present something different. And if we are, hear us out. Anyway, that's our presentation for tonight. 

Mr. Donovan: Steve, just for a point of clarification, I've been handed the file and this matter was referred to Orange County Department of Planning because there is a report dated February 6th of last year. (Note: OCDP Report also read into February 22, 2007 minutes-Pg 7)

Mr. Gaba: Oh well, I never got that. I never got that.

Mr. Donovan: I'm sorry. So there is, it's in the file with the determination.

Mr. Gaba: All right. So. You can strike that last thing. So I'm ready to stand up and answer for my chicanery at this point. 

Mr. Hughes: Maybe you ought to read this before you do.

Mr. Donovan: The request before the Board is to grant a rehearing, which requires a unanimous vote of the Board. 

Mr. Hughes: Here it is. (the Planning Board minutes dated March 6, 2008) You don't recall what you had to say?

Mr. Gaba: I do. I don't think there is anything wrong.

Mr. Hughes: That's the problem. You never think you do anything wrong.

Mr. Gaba: Well, I don't know about never.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to grant a rehearing?

Ms. Eaton: I make a motion to grant a rehearing. 

Ms. Drake: I second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. GABA: Well I'd like to thank the Board for its time and I appreciate it.
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Chairperson Cardone: There was another item on the agenda, Laborers Union Local 17, however that's something that really doesn't need to be on the agenda and I will take care of that matter.

Ms. Gennarelli: Oh, O.K. 

Mr. McKelvey: I wanted to ask Jerry (Canfield). Jerry?

Mr. Canfield: I'm sorry?

Mr. McKelvey: Laborers 17 is still before the Planning Board, right?

Mr. Canfield: What? I'm sorry, I didn't hear. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, they are still before the Planning Board.

Ms. Gennarelli: They faxed in the decision and resolution.

Mr. Canfield: It was on the…

Mr. Donovan: When?

Ms. Gennarelli: I gave a copy to everybody tonight.

Mr. Canfield: …the last planning board agenda?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes. Last Thursday was it?

Mr. Canfield: Last Thursday, yes.

Mr. Donovan: Apparently there is a letter; Jerry from your office (the Building Department Office) indicating their six months is up. But the way we have been treating these is if it gets referred here and we give a variance and it goes back to the Planning Board the six months doesn't start to run until the Planning Board makes their decision.

Mr. Canfield: O.K. Well I think what the question really was, is they were back before the Planning Board but that was on an adjust or an amended ARB.

Mr. Donovan: O.K. 

Mr. Canfield: If you recall the project called for an interconnecting walkway above.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Canfield: The applicant has now requested from the Planning Board a phased project and has asked to have that walkway built the first phase the addition and then at a later time come back for phase two or, excuse me, not to come but at a later date do phase two, the walkway. So but I think the original action from the Planning Board is what they (the Building Department) were looking at, I think. I'd have to look at the dates from the letter and the actual dates from the original approval.

Mr. McKelvey: Well that's why I wanted to make sure because I assumed they are still before them.

Mr. Donovan: And you think that the six months may be up? If you don't know maybe you can just look into to and get the correct dates because it should be the six months from whatever application was referred to us (the ZBA), that we then granted and sent back to the Planning Board, when that phase of the application was completed their six months should start to run from there.

Chairperson Cardone: But this draft says May 22nd…

Mr. Donovan: But Jerry saying it's on a different issue. Right?

Mr. Canfield: I'm at a disadvantage, Dave. I didn't thoroughly look at the dates so I'm not really prepared to say.

Mr. Donovan: As we lawyers like to say, if you don't know, don't guess.

Mr. Canfield: Yeah, yeah, that's dangerous, no.

Mr. McKelvey: We don't know if it's necessary.

Chairperson Cardone: I personally haven't had time to read the April minutes. I don't know about anybody else. I know at least one other person probably hasn't had time to read them. So the April I think I'd like to hold off until next month. However, the March minutes we did not have a vote on those last month. So at this time do we have approval for the March minutes?

Mr. McKelvey: I'll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Maher: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye all - except Mr. Manley who abstained.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Is there anything further?

Ms. Drake: Did we ever do the February minutes?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. We did the February. I checked on that to make sure. Do we have anything else? Do we have a motion to adjourn?

Mr. Manley: I'll make a motion.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor?

Aye all.

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.
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